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Chairman’s Report

Joyce Corporation Ltd achieved an underlying 

operating profit before tax (excluding one-off non-

recurring times) of $1.603m for the year ended 

30th June 2009 which represents an increase of 

24% on the previous year.  However, the operating 

result was adversely impacted by downward 

property revaluations, development costs and legal 

expenses for the year of $3.649m.  This resulted 

in a net loss after tax of $1.329m.

The property revaluation, which is required under 

accounting standards, resulted in a write down of 

$2.820m.

Strategically we are delivering on our objective 

to run a combination of Company owned and 

operated stores and franchised stores. Part of this 

strategy is to underpin our growth objectives.  We 

are also pleased to have added five new stores 

during the 2008/0009 financial year.  In total the 

group operates 46 stores nationally.

The Directors have advised that the determination 

of a final dividend will be deferred until the 

outcome of the Queensland property sale is 

determined.  The property sale agreement is 

subject to a due diligence period which ends on 

23 October 2009 with settlement planned for no 

later than 30 June 2010.

The Board of Directors would like to acknowledge 

the commitment and effort of the staff of Joyce 

and Bedshed.  Directors also acknowledge our 

shareholders, Bedshed franchisees and suppliers 

in supporting the Company.

Outlook

The Company’s future exposure to property 

revaluations, required under current accounting 

standards, should lessen given Joyce’s recent 

announcement that the company has accepted an 

offer for the sale of the Queensland property and 

the brighter prospects of the national economy.

Net tangible assets per share are $0.69. Net 

assets per share, excluding deferred tax liabilities 

on recent revaluations, are $1.30 per share. 

The Group has robust financial wherewithal with 

a strong asset base which we are planning to 

leverage for growth.

The objective of achieving a satisfactory return 

on shareholders’ funds is being worked on 

proactively.  

D A SMETANA

CHAIRMAN
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Managing Director’s Report

Performance Overview

Despite a very challenging year in terms of the economic environment, Joyce Corporation Ltd generated 

an underlying operating profit before tax (excluding one-off non-recurring times) of $1.603m for the year 

ended 30th June 2009. This represents an increase of 24% on the previous year. 

The following table shows the underlying performance:

2009 2008

$’000 $’000

Underlying operating profit before tax (excluding property 
revaluations, property sale and legal expenses)

1,603 1,290

Underlying profit before tax (excluding property revaluations 
and property sale)

774 451

The net loss after tax, property revaluations and legal expenses for the year was $1.329m. 

The following table shows a comparison between the 2008 and 2009 financial results:

2009 2008

$’000 $’000

Bedshed stores and franchising* 1,467 697

Joyce administration costs and direct property income and costs* (693) (246)

Profit on disposal of investment property  - 1,629

Property revaluations (2,820) (14)

Reported net profit/(loss) before tax (2,046) 2,066

Income tax benefit 717 -

Reported net profit/(loss) after tax (1,329) 2,066

* The above results include an allocation of inter-segment finance charges/revenue.

Joyce’s administration costs and direct property 

income and costs generated a larger loss than in 

the previous financial year but this is largely due 

to the re-alignment of costs between Franchising 

and Joyce.

Joyce’s industrial property portfolio in Queensland 

and New South Wales diminished in value $2.8M 

before tax this financial year compared to a loss of 

$14K in the previous financial year. 
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BEDSHED’S PEFORMANCE

2008/2009 has been a year of growth and 

development for Bedshed Franchising Pty Ltd. As 

the core business of the Joyce Group, Bedshed 

Franchising Pty Ltd is the franchisor of one of 

Australia’s largest specialty bedding and bedroom 

furniture retailers, with stores in Western Australia, 

Victoria, Queensland, New South Wales and South 

Australia. The company has 46 stores in total.

Bedshed’s unique retail recipe has proven to be a 

highly profitable formula during its 29 year history.  

During the 2008/2009 financial year, Bedshed 

experienced a national 1% decline in like for like 

sales but a 4% increase overall over the previous 

year, which is a strong result in what has been an 

extremely competitive and challenging market.  

The sales growth across Bedshed stores has 

exceeded national retail sales growth figures and 

has been well supported by the success of the 

Bedshed Import Program, where leading edge 

designs are sourced from exclusive overseas 

manufacturers and sold at very competitive prices. 

Additions to the core bedding and furniture ranges 

have resulted in incremental sales for the group.

The Bedshed Marketing Program continues to 

deliver strong results in each state.  These positive 

results have been achieved through attractive 

offers and aggressive marketing spend, made 

possible by Bedshed’s strong sales growth and 

increase in store numbers.

Bedshed added 5 new stores to the network 

during the year, namely Cockburn in Western 

Australia, Highpoint (Melbourne) and Wodonga 

in Victoria, Mittagong in New South Wales and 

Helensvale in Queensland.  This expansion took 

the number of stores to 46 with a plan to have 80 

within 5 years or so.

Bedshed purchased the Claremont store from 

the franchisee during the year and now runs a 

network of 14 company owned and operated 

stores to complement the 32 franchised stores. 

Bedshed decided that in future it will run a 

combination of company owned and operated 

stores, as well as support its network of franchised 

stores in order to access the strong retail margins 

available as a result of Bedshed’s strong supply 

chain and operating model. Bedshed is learning 

quickly to run its own stores optimally and this in 

turn is making it a better franchisor.
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LOOKING FORWARD

Single digit sales growth is anticipated in the 

coming year with a better second half of the 

financial year expected as improved consumer 

confidence translates into higher retail sales.

Management continues to review the performance 

of its company owned and operated stores and will 

look to close any that it feels will not be profitable 

in the long term.

OUR PEOPLE

Joyce has continued to review its resource 

requirements and has made a number of changes 

in the organisational structure, both to lower our 

operating costs and to meet our strategic and 

operational priorities. The Company retains a 

talented team to take it forward.

The staff members of Bedshed Franchising Pty 

Ltd are to be congratulated on their dedication to 

the business, on their contribution towards the 

strong sales performance and expansion of the 

Bedshed stores network.

ROB MAHONEY

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Managing Director’s Report
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Company History

Joyce Corporation Ltd has had a long a varied 

history, dating back to the establishment of 

Joyce Bros in 1886 as a hessian and calico bag 

manufacturer. Since that time it has evolved 

through bedding and furniture manufacture, via 

steel and outdoor furniture, inbuilt kitchens, rural 

activities, through a flexible polyurethane foam 

and polystyrene foam businesses and a retail 

franchise activity. It operated across five states in 

Australia, as well as Singapore and Malaysia and 

supplied up to 40% of the foam market.

 All of this has resulted in the Joyce Corporation 

Ltd of today focusing on franchised and company 

owned Bedshed stores and industrial properties 

in New South Wales and Queensland. 

The Joyce business has undergone development 

over the years and its focus has changed, but 

the four cornerstones of the Group remain 

unchanged:

Integrity

Innovation

Service

Quality

Here are a few milestones along the way:-

Joyce Milestones
Dec 1984 Dec 1986 June 1988 Dec 1990 1992 April 1997 Nov 2005 April 2006

Joyce purchased 
from George 
Weston Foods by 
a consortium of 
WA businessmen, 
under the 
Executive 
Chairmanship of 
Dan Smetana.

Joyce Corporation 
Ltd listed on the 
ASX.

Acquisition of 
Cable Makers 
Australian 
polyurethane 
foam, furniture 
and bedding 
activities.

Sale of Joyce’s 
bedding business 
to Pacific Dunlop 
Limited.

Joyce active in 
Australasia with 
two offshore 
operational 
centres.

Acquired Davison 
Industries and 
Davison Oils 
which become 
Joyce Rural Pty 
Ltd.

Sold foam 
businesses to 
Sheela Foam Pte 
Limited.

Acquired 100% 
of Bedshed 
Franchising 
Pty Ltd having 
previously 
held a 49% 
shareholding.

Bedshed Milestones
1980 June 2003 Dec 2003 Nov 2005 May 2006

First Bedshed store opened in Perth First Bedshed store in 
South Australia

First Bedshed store in 
Victoria

Purchase of the 
Mattress Discounters 
stores in Queensland

Purchase of the first 
company owned store 
in WA

Bedshed is one of Australia’s largest specialist bedding and bedroom furniture retailers. From one store in Perth in 1980 Bedshed has 

expanded and is easily recognized by Bedshed’s familiar turn down sheet logo and distinctive purple colour.

Bedshed has a network of company and individually owned stores and is working towards having a network of 80 stores in the next five 

years.

1980 1982 1984 1986 1988 1990 1992 1994 1996 1998 2000 2002 2004 2006 2009
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The Management Team

Jamie Armes, Company Secretary and Financial Controller

Jamie Armes joined Bedshed in July 2009. Mr Armes is a Chartered Accountant with over 16 years 

experience within the profession and commerce. He has previously held senior financial positions within 

mining and investment companies as well as acting as Company Secretary for ASX listed entities.

Stuart Jones, National Merchandise Manager

Stuart Jones has been the Merchandise Manager for Bedshed Franchising Pty Ltd since 1999. He 

was also the franchisee for Bedshed Armadale from 1997 – 2003. Prior to that he was National Sales 

Manager of The Furniture Company from 1994 – 1997. Stuart has had extensive bedding product and 

retail management at both corporate and retail levels within the furniture industry. In recent years, Stuart 

has overseen the expansion of Bedshed’s import programme.

Sarah Freedman, National Marketing Manager

Sarah Freedman joined Bedshed in September 2007 as National Marketing Manager. Prior to this Sarah 

was the Marketing Manager for Non Traditional Breads with George Weston Foods managing brands 

such as Golden, Bazaar Breads, Tip Top Muffins and Top Taste Cakes. In this role, Sarah worked closely 

with key national supermarkets and the company to develop and roll out innovative new products, 

reposition brands and on key communications strategies and in-store merchandising solutions. Prior 

to this Sarah worked with Dairy Farmers in key marketing and sales management roles and began her 

career with Nestle. Sarah has 10 years plus of Marketing / Sales experience, mostly in management 

positions with companies in the fast moving consumer goods sector.

Gavin Culmsee, General Manager (Operations) 

Gavin Culmsee joined Bedshed at the end of July 2008 as General Manager (Operations). Prior to this, 

Gavin was a Retail Operations Manager for Freedom Furniture. A member of the Freedom executive 

team, Gavin’s role involved day to day retailing combined with strategic decision making. Gavin’s 

experience involves managing both Company owned and franchise stores along with substantial 

distribution centre’s and a logistics network to support both. Gavin has 20 years of experience in retailing 

at all levels and brings well developed skills at store network development, improving store performance, 

employee coaching and development.
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Board of Directors of Joyce Corporation Ltd 

(“the Company”) is responsible for the corporate 

governance of the Consolidated Entity. The Board 

monitors the business affairs of the Company 

on behalf of the shareholders by whom they are 

elected and to whom they are accountable.

The Company has made it a priority to adopt 

systems of control and accountability as 

the basis for the administration of corporate 

governance. Some of these policies and 

procedures are summarised in this statement. 

Commensurate with the spirit of the ASX Corporate 

Governance Council’s Corporate Governance 

Principles and Recommendations (“Principles 

& Recommendations”), the Company has 

followed each recommendation where the 

Board has considered the recommendation to 

be an appropriate benchmark for its corporate 

governance practices. Where the Company’s 

corporate governance practices follow a 

recommendation, the Board has made appropriate 

statements reporting on the adoption of the 

recommendation. Where, after due consideration, 

the Company’s corporate governance practices 

depart from a recommendation, the Board has 

offered full disclosure and reason for the adoption 

of its own practice. 

Further information about the Company’s 

charters, policies and procedures may be found 

at the Company’s website at www.joycecorp.com.

au, under the section marked Governance. 

Disclosure – Principles & Recommendations 

The Company reports below on how it has 

followed (or otherwise departed from) each of 

the Principles & Recommendations during the 

2008/2009 financial year (“Reporting Period”).

Principle 1: Lay Solid Foundation for Management 
and Oversight 

Recommendation 1.1: 

Companies should establish the functions 

reserved to the Board and those delegated to 

senior executives and disclose those functions. 

Disclosure: 

The Board and senior management of the Company 
are committed to acting responsibly, ethically and 
with high standards of integrity as the Company 
strives to create shareholder value. The Board 
accepts responsibility for the overall corporate 
governance of the Company and has consequently 
developed and adopted corporate governance 
practices and policies that have been implemented 
throughout management and governance. 

The Company has established the functions 
reserved to the Board and is in the process of 
formalising these functions in a Board Charter. The 
Board’s primary role is the optimisation of Company 
performance and protection and enhancement of 
shareholder value. Its functions and responsibilities 
includes setting strategic and policy direction, 
monitoring performance against strategy, identifying 
principal risks and opportunities and ensuring risk 
management systems are established and reviewed, 
approving and monitoring financial reports, capital 
management, compliance, significant business 
transactions and investments, appointing senior 
management and monitoring performance, 
remuneration, development and succession, 
adopting procedures to ensure the business of 
the Company is consistent with Company values, 
continuous disclosure compliance, ensuring 
effective shareholder communication, ensuring 
the Board remains appropriately skilled, reviewing 
and approving corporate governance systems and 
enhancing and protecting the Company’s reputation. 

The Board is also governed by the Company’s 
constitution, and on appointment each Director 
is provided with a formal letter of appointment 
setting out key terms and conditions of the 
appointment, their duties and responsibilities, the 
role of the Board and committees, the Company’s 
constitution and the Company’s policies. 

The Board has delegated the authority and 
responsibility to manage and administer the 
Company’s general operations to its Managing 
Director, and its financial operations to its Chief 
Financial Officer. The Company has in place 
formal letters of engagement for its senior 
management, setting out in further detail the 
responsibilities specifically delegated to them. 
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The Company has established the functions 

delegated to senior executives and will set out 

these functions in its Board Charter. Senior 

executives are responsible for supporting the 

Managing Director and assisting the Managing 

Director in implementing the running of the 

general operations and financial business of 

the Company, in accordance with the delegated 

authority of the Board.

Recommendation 1.2: 

Companies should disclose the process for 

evaluating the performance of senior executives. 

Disclosure: 

Evaluation of the Managing Director is carried 

out by the Remuneration Committee each 

year together with the ongoing monitoring of 

management and Company performance, with 

informal discussions undertaken as required. 

The Managing Director conducts a formal review 

each year assessing the performance of Senior 

Executives and reports back to the Board. 

Recommendation 1.3: 

Companies should provide the information indicated 

in the “Guide to reporting on Principle 1.” 

Disclosure: 

The Remuneration Committee conducted an 

evaluation of the Managing Director during 

the reporting period. The Managing Director 

conducted an evaluation of Senior Executives 

during the reporting period. The performance 

evaluation was undertaken in accordance with the 

process disclosed above.

Principle 2: Structure the Board to add value 

Recommendation 2.1: 

A majority of the Board should be independent 

Directors.

Disclosure: 

The Board is currently comprised of five Directors 

with four being non-executive Directors, including 

the Chairman and one executive Director being 

the Managing Director. The Company complies 

with this recommendation, as three of the five 

Directors are considered independent.

The independent Directors of the Company are:

Mr M Gurry (Non-Executive Director and 

Chairman of the Audit Committee)

Mr T Hantke (Non-Executive Director and 

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr A Mankarios (Non-Executive Director)

The Board regularly assesses the independence of 

each Director with the intention to have a majority 

of Directors being independent. Each Director 

is required to provide to the Board all relevant 

information to assist the Board in this regard.

The Board will continue to monitor developments 

and consider any guidelines that may be issued 

with respect to the maximum tenure of Directors 

in order to meet ‘independence’ guidelines.

Recommendation 2.2: 

The Chair should be an independent Director. 

Disclosure: 

The Chairman is not considered independent due 

to the size of the shareholding in his control. 

Explanation for Departure:

The Board has decided to continue with Mr 

D Smetana as Chairman in recognition of his 

considerable experience with the Company 

and expertise that complements the skills and 

experience of the other Board members and 

the Managing Director. The Company deals with 

the lack of independence of the Chairman by 

ensuring that conflicts of interest are adequately 

disclosed and the Chairman abstains from voting 

on matters where they have (he has), or it is 

perceived they have (he has) a beneficial interest 

in the outcome of the matters.

Recommendation 2.3: 

The roles of the Chair and Managing Director 

should not be exercised by the same individual. 

Corporate Governance Statement
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Disclosure: 

The Managing Director is Mr Mahoney who is not 

Chair of the Board.

Recommendation 2.4: 

The Board should establish a Nomination 

Committee. 

Notification of Departure: 

The Company has not established a separate 

Nomination Committee. 

Explanation for Departure: 

The Board considers the present Directors are 

able to discharge the responsibilities of a Director, 

having regards to the law and the highest 

standards of governance. Should a vacancy exist, 

for whatever reason, or where considered that 

the Board would benefit from the services of a 

new Director, the Board will select appropriate 

candidates with relevant qualifications, skills and 

experience. The Board has not established a 

separate Nomination Committee as, due to the 

Company’s size, the simplicity of its operations, 

the Board’s size and the cost effectiveness of the 

Board’s current operations, the Board considers 

such a separate Nomination Committee is not 

warranted or commercially viable and its functions 

and responsibilities can be adequately and 

efficiently discharged by the Board as a whole. 

The Board assesses the experience, knowledge 

and expertise of potential Directors before any 

appointment is made. 

Items that are usually required to be discussed by 

a Nomination Committee are marked as separate 

agenda items at Board meetings when required. 

The Board deals with any conflicts of interest that 

may occur when convening in the capacity of 

Nomination Committee by ensuring the Director 

with conflicting interests is not party to the 

relevant discussions.

Recommendation 2.5: 

Companies should disclose the process for 

evaluating the performance of the Board, its 

committees and individual Directors. 

Disclosure: 

The Company has adopted self evaluation 

processes to measure Board performance. The 

performance of all Directors is assessed through 

analysis and review by, and discussion with, the 

Chair on issues relating to individual Directors’ 

attendance at and involvement in Board meetings, 

interaction with management, performance of 

allocated tasks and any other matters identified 

by the Chair or other Directors. Evaluation of any 

Board committees is conducted on a similar basis. 

Due to the Board’s assessment of the effectiveness 

of these processes, the Board has not formalised 

qualitative performance indicators to measure 

individual Director’s performance. 

Recommendation 2.6: 

Companies should provide the information indicated 

in the “Guide to reporting on Principle 2.” 

Disclosure: 

Skills, Experience, Expertise and Term of Office of 
each Director 

The composition of the Board has been 

determined on the basis of providing the 

Company with the benefit of a broad range of 

commercial, administrative and financial skills, 

combined with an appropriate level of experience 

at a senior corporate level. The names and further 

information regarding the skills, experience, 

qualifications, relevant expertise and term of 

office of the Directors are set out in the most 

recent Directors’ Report. 

Board Access to Information and Independent 
Advice

All Directors have access to employees and, 

subject to the law, access to all Company records 

and information held by employees and external 

advisers. The Board receives regular detailed 

financial and operational reports from senior 

management to enable it to carry out its duties.

Consistent with ASX Principle 2, the Company 

allows each Director to seek individual external 

advice at the expense of the Company.

Corporate Governance Statement
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Committees of the Board

The Board has established an Audit Committee 

and a Remuneration Committee to assist the 

Board in the discharge of its responsibilities.

Further information about the Audit Committee 

is provided in the statement under Principal 4: 

Safeguard Integrity in Financial Reporting.

Further information about the Remuneration 

Committee is provided in the statement under 

Principal 8: Remunerate Fairly and Responsibility.

Identification of Independent Directors

The policy on Director Independence defines 

an independent Director as a non-executive 

Director (not a member of management) and free 

of any business or other relationship that could 

materially interfere with, or could reasonably 

be perceived to materially interfere with the 

independent exercise of their judgment. 

In determining the independent status of a 

Director the Board considers whether the 

Director: 

is a substantial shareholder of the Company 

(as defined by the Corporations Act) or an 

officer of, or otherwise associated directly or 

indirectly with, a substantial shareholder the 

Company; 

is employed, or has previously been employed 

in an executive capacity by the Company or 

another group member, and there has not 

been a period of at least three years between 

ceasing such employment and serving on the 

Board; 

has within the last three years been a principal 

of a material professional adviser or a material 

consultant to the Company, or another group 

member, or an employee materially associated 

with the service provider; 

is a material supplier or customer of the 

Company, or another group member, or an 

officer of or otherwise associated directly or 

indirectly with a material supplier or customer; 

has a material contractual relationship with 

the Company or another group member, other 

than as a Director of the Company. 

Materiality is assessed on a case-by-case basis 

with reference to each Director’s individual 

circumstances, rather than by applying general 

materiality thresholds.

Nomination Matters 

The full Board carries out the role of the 

Nomination Committee. The full Board did not 

officially convene as a Nomination Committee 

during the Reporting Period; however the Board 

discusses nominated-related matters from time to 

time during the year as required. 

The explanation for departure set out under 

Recommendation 2.4 above explains how the 

functions of the Nomination Committee are 

performed. 

Performance Evaluation 

During the Reporting Period no review or 

evaluation of the performance of the Board, 

individual Directors and applicable Committees 

was undertaken in accordance with the process 

disclosed at Recommendation 2.5. 

Selection and (Re)/Appointment of Directors 

The Company has not established (and therefore 

has not made publicly available) a formal 

Policy and Procedure for Selection and (Re)/

Appointment of Directors. 

In determining candidates for the Board, the 

Nomination Committee (or equivalent) considers 

the balance of independent Directors on the 

Board as well as the skills and qualifications of 

potential candidates that will best enhance the 

Board’s effectiveness. 

The Board recognises that Board renewal is 

critical to performance and the impact of Board 

tenure on succession planning. Under the 

Company’s constitution, at every annual general 

meeting one third of the Directors (except the 

Managing Director) must retire from office and 

Corporate Governance Statement
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is eligible for re-election at that meeting. The 

Directors to retire must be those who have been 

longest in office since their last election and, in 

any event, Directors cannot hold office for more 

than three years without submitting themselves 

for re-election. Re-appointment of Directors is not 

automatic.

Principle 3: Promote Ethical and Responsible 
Decision Making

Recommendation 3.1: 

Companies should establish a Code of Conduct 

and disclose the code or a summary of the 

code as to the practices necessary to maintain 

confidence in the Company’s integrity, the 

practices necessary to take into account their 

legal obligations and the reasonable expectations 

of their stakeholders and the responsibility and 

accountability of individuals for reporting and 

investigating reports of unethical practices. 

Disclosure: 

The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for 

Directors to promote ethical and responsible 

decision making by Directors. The Code is based 

on a code of conduct for Directors prepared by 

the Australian Institute of Company Directors 

and embraces the values of honesty, integrity, 

enterprise, excellence, accountability, justice, 

independence and equality of shareholder 

opportunity.

The principles of the Code are:

A Director must act honestly, in good faith and  

in the best interests of the Company as a whole.

A Director has a duty to use due care and 

diligence in fulfilling the functions of office and 

exercising the powers attached to that office. 

A Director must use the powers of office for 

a proper purpose, in the best interests of the 

Company as a whole.

A Director must not take improper advantage 

of the position of Director.

A Director must not allow personal interests, 

or the interests of any associated person, to 

conflict with the interests of the Company.

A Director has an obligation to be independent 

in judgment and actions and to take all 

reasonable steps to be satisfied as to the 

soundness of all decisions taken by the Board.

Confidential information received by a Director 

in the course of the exercise of directional 

duties remains the property of the Company 

and it is improper to disclose it, or allow it to 

be disclosed, unless that disclosure has been 

authorised by the Company, or the person 

from whom the information is provided, or is 

required by law.

A Director should not engage in conduct likely 

to bring discredit upon the Company.

A Director has an obligation at all times, to 

comply with the spirit, as well as the letter of 

the law and with the principles of the Code.

The Managing Director is responsible to the 

Board for the day-to-day management of the 

Company.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics 

and Conduct for all employees and Directors of 

the Company which details policies, procedures 

and guidelines aimed at maintaining high 

ethical standards, corporate behaviour and 

accountability. The Directors of the Company are 

also obliged to comply with the Code of Conduct 

for Directors.

Objective

The code of Ethics and Conduct confirms that 

the Company’s primary objective is to provide a 

satisfactory return to shareholders. The Company 

aims to achieve this by:

Satisfying the needs of the customers and 

Franchisees through the provision of goods and 

services on a competitive and professional basis;

Providing a safe and fulfilling working 

environment for employees, rewarding good 

performance and providing opportunities for 

advancement;

Conducting existing operations in an efficient 

manner and by seeking out opportunities for 

expansion;

Corporate Governance Statement
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Responding to the attitudes and expectations 

of the communities in which the Company 

operates;

Acting with integrity and honesty in dealings 

both inside and outside the group.

Values

All employees are expected to:

Respect the law and act in accordance with it;

Respect confidentiality and not misuse 

information, assets or facilities;

Value and maintain professionalism;

Avoid real or perceived conflicts of interest;

Act in the best interests of shareholders;

By their actions contribute to the Company’s 

reputation as a good corporate citizen which 

seeks the respect of the communities and 

environments in which it operates;

Perform their duties in ways that minimise 

environmental impacts and maximise 

workplace safety;

Exercise fairness, courtesy, respect, 

consideration and sensitivity in all dealings 

within their workplace and with Franchisees, 

customers, suppliers, and the public 

generally; and

Act with honesty, integrity, decency and 

responsibility at all times.

 Under the Code of Ethics and Conduct, all 

employees are required to comply with the letter 

and spirit of all applicable laws and regulations 

in performance of their duties and their dealings 

with fellow employees, customers, Franchisees, 

suppliers and all third parties with whom they 

have contact in the performance of their duties. 

In addition, all employees have a responsibility to 

adhere to the Code and ensure that no breaches 

occur. An employee who breaches the Code may 

face disciplinary action.

If an employee suspects that a breach of the 

Code has occurred or will occur, he or she must 

report that breach to the appropriate Company 

manager.

No employee will be disadvantaged or prejudiced 

if he or she reports in good faith a suspected 

breach. All reports will be acted upon and kept 

confidential. In addition, the whistleblower 

provisions of the Corporations Act 2001 provide 

specific protection to employees who report 

breaches or suspected breaches of Corporations 

Legislation under certain circumstances.

Responsibility for the administration, implementation 

and periodic review of the Code of Ethics and 

Conduct lies with the Company Secretary, in 

consultation with the Managing Director.

Recommendation 3.2: 

Companies should establish a policy concerning 

trading in Company securities by Directors, senior 

executives and employees, and disclose the 

policy or a summary of that policy.

Disclosure:

Apart from observing all legal requirements, it is 

the policy of the Board that all Directors and Senior 

Executives advise the Board before dealing in Joyce 

Corporation Ltd shares. In order to encourage as 

active a market as possible in Company shares 

Directors and Senior Executives are encouraged 

to trade in Company shares except during periods 

when they are aware of material matters or activities 

which are not yet known by the market in general. 

For example during the period from the finalisation 

of  the annual and half yearly results and their 

release, The Board will not authorise trading in 

Joyce Corporation Ltd shares by Directors or Senior 

Executives if, in its opinion, that Director or Executive 

has knowledge of any fact that may affect the 

share price. The Board also accepts responsibility 

for reviewing any transactions between the 

Company and Directors or any interest associated 

with Directors, to ensure the structure and the 

terms of the transaction is in compliance with the 

Corporations Act 2001 and is properly disclosed.

Recommendation 3.3: 

Companies should provide the information indicated 

in the “Guide to reporting on Principle 3.” 

Corporate Governance Statement
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Disclosure: 

Please refer to the disclosure in Recommendation 
3.1 and Recommendation 3.2 above for a summary 
of the Code of Conduct and Trading Policy.

Principle 4: Safeguard Integrity in Financial 
Reporting

Recommendation 4.1: 

The Board should establish an Audit Committee. 

Disclosure: 

The Company has established an Audit 
Committee. 

Recommendation 4.2: 

The Audit Committee should be structured so that 
it: 

consists only of non-executive Directors 

consists of a majority of independent Directors 

is chaired by an independent Chair, who is not 
Chair of the Board 

has at least three members. 

Disclosure: 

The Company considers that it complies with this 
requirement.

The Audit Committee comprises of:

Mr M A Gurry (Chairman of the Audit 
Committee)

Mr A Mankarios

Mr T R Hantke

Mr D Smetana

Recommendation 4.3: 

The Audit Committee should have a formal 
charter.

Disclosure: 

The Company has adopted an Audit Committee 
Charter. 

Recommendation 4.4: 

Companies should provide the information 

indicated in the “Guide to reporting on Principle 4.”

Disclosure:

Details of each of Director’s qualifications and 
attendance at the Audit Committee meetings are 
set out in the Directors’ Report. All Directors are 
financially literate and have an understanding of 
the industry in which the Company operates. 

Appointment of Auditor

The effectiveness, performance and 
independence of the external auditor are reviewed 
by the Audit Committee. If it becomes necessary 
to replace the external auditors for performance or 
independence reasons, the Audit Committee will 
formalise the procedure and policy for selecting a 
new external auditor.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee monitors internal control 
policies and procedures designed to safeguard 
Company assets and to maintain the integrity 
of financial reporting, which is consistent with 
ASX Principle 4. The responsibilities of the Audit 
Committee are set out in its Charter. A copy of 
the Audit Committee Charter is available on the 
Company’s website under Governance.

Principle 5: Make Timely and Balanced Disclosure 

Recommendation 5.1: 

Companies should establish written policies 
designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing 
Rule disclosure requirements and to ensure 
accountability at a senior executive level for that 
compliance and disclose those policies or a 
summary of those policies. 

Disclosure: 

The Company has established procedures to 
ensure there is timely disclosure to the ASX of price 
sensitive information which may have a material 
effect on the price or value of the entity’s securities.

The Company also posts announcements on its 
web site to complement the official release of 
information to the market.

Recommendation 5.2: 

Companies should provide the information 
indicated in the “Guide to reporting on Principle 5.” 

Corporate Governance Statement
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Disclosure: 

A copy of the Continuous Disclosure Policy 

is available on the Company’s website in the 

Governance section.

Principle 6: Respect the Right of Shareholders

Recommendation 6.1: 

Companies should design a communications 

policy for promoting effective communication with 

shareholders and encouraging their participation 

at general meetings and disclose their policy or a 

summary of that policy. 

Disclosure: 

The Company has an effective shareholder 

communication procedure. Communication 

of information to shareholders is through the 

distribution of an annual report and half yearly 

report, announcements through the ASX and the 

media regarding changes in its business.

The Company’s annual general meeting is a major 

forum for shareholders to ask questions about the 

Company performance and the external auditors 

also are invited to attend the annual general 

meeting and answer shareholder questions.

The Company maintains a web site which 

includes copies of all Corporate Governance 

policies and procedures as well as all shareholder 

communications both current and historical.

Recommendation 6.2: 

Companies should provide the information 

indicated in the “Guide to reporting on Principle 6.” 

Disclosure: 

A copy of the Shareholders Communications 

Policy is available on the Company’s website in the 

Governance section.

Principle 7: Recognise and Manage Risk

Recommendation 7.1: 

Companies should establish policies for the 

oversight and management of material business 

risks and disclose a summary of those policies. 

Disclosure: 

The Company has developed a Risk Management 
and Oversight Policy, which sets out systems for risk 
oversight, management and internal control. A copy 
of this policy is available on the Company website.

The Board oversees the assessment of risks 
across the Company and the establishment and 
implementation of risk management procedures 
and controls. The Board has delegated some of its 
responsibilities to the Audit Committee; however, 
the Board maintains the overall responsibility for the 
process. The Company’s senior management are 
delegated the tasks of managing operational risks and 
the implementation of risk management strategies. 

The Board approves risk management systems 
and reviews them regularly. At each Director’s 
meeting the Board receives a risk management 
update from management and considers any 
necessary controls required to monitor and 
oversee the material risks of the Company. 

The Company’s risk management systems 
and control frameworks currently include the 
Board’s ongoing monitoring of management 
and operational performance, a comprehensive 
system of budgeting, forecasting and reporting to 
the Board, regular presentations to the Board by 
management on the management of risk, approval 
procedures for significant capital expenditure 
above threshold levels, the functioning of the Audit 
Committee, written policies on specific activities 
and corporate governance, communication 
between the Board and external auditors. 

The Board recognises that material risks facing 
the Company are the more significant areas of 
uncertainty or exposure to the Company that could 
adversely affect the achievement of the Company’s 
objectives and successful implementation of its 
business strategies. 

 The material risks, both financial and non-
financial, currently assessed as facing the 
Company are as follows: 

Financial risk;

Legal risk/contract compliance

Asset protection;

Interest rate risk;

Environmental risk, and

Statutory compliance

Corporate Governance Statement
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The Board considers these identified material risks 
as part of its regular risk management reviews or 
as a result of regular interaction with management 
and other relevant staff. 

Recommendation 7.2: 

The Board should require management to design 
and implement the risk management and internal 
control system to manage the Company’s material 
business risks and report to it on whether those 
risks are being managed effectively. The Board 
should disclose that management has reported 
to it as to the effectiveness of the Company’s 
management of its material business risks. 

Disclosure: 

Management maintains the risk management and 
internal control systems to manage the Company’s 
material business risks. The Board also requires 
management to report to it confirming that those 
risks are being managed effectively. Further, the 
Board has received a report from management 
as to the effectiveness of the Company’s 
management of its material business risks.

Recommendation 7.3: 

The Board should disclose whether it has 
received assurance from the Chief Executive 
Officer (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial 
Officer (or equivalent) that the declaration 
provided in accordance with section 295A of the 
Corporations Act is founded on a sound system 
of risk management and internal control and that 
the system is operating effectively in all material 
respects in relation to financial reporting risks. 

Disclosure: 

The Board requires assurance from the Managing 
Director and Chief Financial Officer that the 
declaration in relation to section 295A of the 
Corporations Act is founded in a sound system 
of risk management and internal control and that 
the system is operating effectively in all material 
aspects in relation to financial reporting risks. 

Recommendation 7.4: 

Companies should provide the information 
indicated in the “Guide to reporting on Principle 7.” 

Disclosure: 

The Board has received the report from the 

Chief Executive Officer (or equivalent) and the 

Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) under 

Recommendation 7.2

The Board has received the assurance from the 

Chief Executive Officer (or equivalent) and the 

Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) under 

Recommendation 7.3.

A copy of the Risk Management and Oversight 

Policy is available on the Company’s website in the 

Governance section.

Principle 8: Remunerate Fairly and Responsibly

Recommendation 8.1: 

The Board should establish a Remuneration 

Committee. 

Disclosure: 

The Company has established a Remuneration 

Committee. 

Recommendation 8.2: 

Companies should clearly distinguish the structure 

of non-executive Directors’ remuneration from that 

of executive Directors and senior executives. 

Disclosure: 

Non-executive Directors are remunerated at a fixed 

fee for time, commitment and responsibilities. 

Remuneration for non-executive Directors is not 

linked to the performance of the Company. 

Pay and rewards for Executive Directors and senior 

executives consists of a base salary and performance 

incentives. Executives are offered a competitive 

level of base pay at market rates and are reviewed 

annually to ensure market competitiveness. 

Recommendation 8.3: 

Companies should provide the information 

indicated in the “Guide to reporting on 

Principle 8.” 

Corporate Governance Statement
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Disclosure: 

Details of remuneration, including the Company’s 
policy on remuneration, are contained in the 
“Remuneration Report” which forms a part of the 
Directors’ Report. The Company’s remuneration 
policies are reflected in the Company’s 

Remuneration Committee Charter. 

A copy of the Remuneration Committee Charter is  

available on the Company’s website under Governance.

The Remuneration Committee comprises of the 

following Directors: 

Mr T R Hantke (Chairman of the Remuneration 

Committee)

Mr R Mahoney

Mr A Mankarios 

Details of each of the Director’s attendance at the 
Remuneration Committee meeting are set out in 
the Directors’ Report. There are no termination 
or retirement benefits for non-executive Directors 
(other than superannuation). 

During the Reporting Period the Company did 
not publicly disclose its policy on prohibiting 
transactions in associated products which limit 
the risk of participating in unvested entitlements 
under any equity based remuneration schemes. 
However, the Company’s position is that such 
transactions are prohibited. 

The Remuneration Committee is responsible 
for the performance review process for both the 
Board and the Managing Director.

The Board undertakes an ongoing review in 
relation to its composition and skills mix of the 
Directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Statement

Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices Summary Statement 

No. Recommendation Disclosure

1.1: Companies should establish the functions reserved to the Board and 
those delegated to senior executives and disclose those functions. 

Comply

1.2 Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance 
of senior executives. 

Comply

1.3 Companies should provide the information indicated in the “Guide to 
reporting on Principle 1.” 

Comply

2.1 A majority of the Board should be independent Directors. Comply

2.2 The Chair should be an independent Director. Departure from the 
recommendation. Refer 
to Corporate Governance 
Statement

2.3 The roles of the Chair and Managing Director should not be exercised 
by the same individual. 

Comply

2.4 The Board should establish a Nomination Committee. Departure from the 
recommendation. Refer 
to Corporate Governance 
Statement

2.5 Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance 
of the Board, its committees and individual Directors. 

Comply

2.6 Companies should provide the information indicated in the “Guide to 
reporting on Principle 2.”

Comply
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Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices Summary Statement 

No. Recommendation Disclosure

3.1 Companies should establish a Code of Conduct and disclose the code 
or a summary of the code as to the practices necessary to maintain 
confidence in the Company's integrity, the practices necessary to take 
into account their legal obligations and the reasonable expectations 
of their stakeholders and the responsibility and accountability of 
individuals for reporting and investigating reports of unethical practices. 

Comply

3.2 Companies should establish a policy concerning trading in Company 
securities by Directors, senior executives and employees, and disclose 
the policy or a summary of that policy.

Comply

3.3 Companies should provide the information indicated in the “Guide to 
reporting on Principle 3.” 

Comply

4.1 The Board should establish an Audit Committee. Comply

4.2 The Audit Committee should be structured so that it: 

consists only of non-executive Directors 

consists of a majority of independent Directors 

is chaired by an independent Chair, who is not Chair of the Board 

has at least three members. 

4.3 The Audit Committee should have a formal charter. Comply

4.4 Companies should provide the information indicated in the “Guide to 
reporting on Principle 4.”

Comply

5.1 Companies should establish written policies designed to ensure 
compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure requirements and to 
ensure accountability at a senior executive level for that compliance and 
disclose those policies or a summary of those policies. 

Comply

5.2 Companies should provide the information indicated in the “Guide to 
reporting on Principle 5.” 

Comply

6.1 Companies should design a communications policy for promoting 
effective communication with shareholders and encouraging their 
participation at general meetings and disclose their policy or a summary 
of that policy. 

Comply

6.2 Companies should provide the information indicated in the “Guide to 
reporting on Principle 6.” 

Comply

7.1 Companies should establish policies for the oversight and management 
of material business risks and disclose a summary of those policies. 

Comply

7.2 The Board should require management to design and implement the 
risk management and internal control system to manage the Company's 
material business risks and report to it on whether those risks are being 
managed effectively. The Board should disclose that management has 
reported to it as to the effectiveness of the Company's management of 
its material business risks. 

Comply
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Corporate Governance Statement

Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices Summary Statement 

No. Recommendation Disclosure

7.3 The Board should disclose whether it has received assurance from the 
Chief Executive Officer (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer 
(or equivalent) that the declaration provided in accordance with section 
295A of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of risk 
management and internal control and that the system is operating 
effectively in all material respects in relation to financial reporting risks.

Comply

7.4 Companies should provide the information indicated in the “Guide to 
reporting on Principle 7.”

Comply

8.1 The Board should establish a Remuneration Committee. Comply

8.2 Companies should clearly distinguish the structure of non-executive 
Directors’ remuneration from that of executive Directors and senior 
executives.

Comply

8.3 Companies should provide the information indicated in the “Guide to 
reporting on Principle 8.” 

Comply
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Directors’ Report

Joyce Corporation Ltd  
ABN: 80 009 116 269 and Controlled Entities

Your directors present their report on the Company 

and its controlled entities for the financial year 

ended 30 June 2009.

Directors

The names of directors in office at any time during 

or since the end of the year are:

Mr D A Smetana (appointed 30/11/84)

Mr M A Gurry (appointed 8/05/07)

Mr T R Hantke (appointed 9/06/06)

Mr R Mahoney (appointed 23/03/07)

Mr A Mankarios (appointed 26/02/08)

Directors have been in office since the start of 

the financial year to the date of this report unless 

otherwise stated.

Company Secretary

The following persons held the position of 

Company Secretary at the end of the financial year:

     Mr M J McLean (resigned 10/08/09)

Malcolm McLean joined Bedshed in January 

2006 as Financial Controller and has worked 

in a number of organisations involved in the oil 

industry, IT consulting, financial services and 

retail. He was appointed Company Secretary for 

Joyce Corporation Ltd in June 2006 and has 

over twenty years experience in the accounting 

and finance fields. Malcolm is a Member of 

the Australian Society of Certified Practising 

Accountants.

    Mr Jamie Armes B.Bus CA (appointed 10/8/09)

Mr Armes is a Chartered Accountant with over 

16 years experience within the profession and 

commerce. He has previously held senior financial 

positions within mining and investment companies 

as well as acting as Company Secretary for ASX 

listed entities.

Principal Activities and Significant 
Changes in Nature of Activities

The principal activities of the consolidated group 

during the financial year were:

Rental of investment properties

Franchisor of the Bedshed chain of retail 

bedding stores

Owner of a number of Bedshed retail stores. 

New stores opened during the year included 

Cockburn (WA), Wodonga (VIC), Helensvale 

(QLD), Mittagong (VIC). The Company 

acquired the Claremont (WA) store from a 

franchisee during the financial year.                 

There were no significant changes in the nature of 

the consolidated groups principal activities during 

the financial year.

Dividends Paid or Recommended

Dividends paid or declared for payment are as 

follows:

Ordinary final dividend paid November 2008  

(3 cents per share) $621,049

Ordinary interim dividend paid May 2009  

(1.5 cents per share) $310,524

The determination of the final dividend has been 

deferred until the purchaser of the Queensland 

property has completed their due diligence review, 

which is a condition precedent to the sale.



21      Joyce Corporation Ltd Annual Report 2009

Directors’ Report

Review of Operations and Operating 
Results

The 2009 year proved to be a challenging year 

for retailers with the global downturn significantly 

affecting consumer spending, however, despite 

the challenges of the economic environment 

the Company managed to expand the Bedshed 

network through the addition of four new 

company owned and operated stores as well as 

one new franchised store. Whilst new stores will 

require time to provide their targeted return it is 

anticipated that the investments made this year 

will result in a stronger Bedshed brand nationally 

and have a positive impact on the operations of 

the Company in the future.

The underlying operations of the company remain 

strong with a 24% increase in underlying profit on 

the previous year, which is demonstrated in the 

table below detailing the underlying performance 

of the Company.

Consolidated Group Parent Entity 

2009
$000

2008
$000

2009
$000

2008
$000

Net Profit/Loss before tax as per Income Statement (2,046) 2,066 (1,569)  534 

Adjustments to arrive at underlying profit

Gain on disposal of investment property - (1,629) - (1,629)

Legal costs assocated with franchisee actions  829  839 - - 

Revaluation of investment properties 2,820  14 - - 

Net effect of underlying profit/(loss) adjustments 3,649 (776) - (1,629)

Underlying profit before tax 1,603  1,290 (1,569) (1,095)

 
This table has been prepared in accordance with AICD/Finsia principles for underlying profit.

The net loss after tax for the 30 June 2009 financial year was $1,329,000 compared to a net profit 

after tax of $2,066,000 for 2008. The loss for the year was primarily a consequence of a reduction in 

the value of the Group’s investments properties of $2,820,000 (2008: $14,000). The reduction was 

based on independent valuations that indicated that it was prudent to recognise a decrease in value as 

property markets softened as a result of economic conditions. This resulted in a significant impact on 

the current year results, however, it should be recognised that the 2008 results included a gain on the 

disposal of the South Australian property of $1,629,000.

The Company continued to incur significant legal expenses in defending a number of legal actions with 

our franchisees despite having been successful in defending the three actions that have been concluded 

to date.

Financial Position

The reduction in value of the Company’s 

investment properties detailed above has 

resulted in net assets reducing by $2,244,000 to 

$24,243,000 from $26,487,000 in 2008.

The debt to equity ratio of the group decreased 

from 38% to 37% during the financial year. The 

proposed sale of the Queensland property that was 

announced 6 August 2009 will provide additional 

funds with which to further reduce the debt levels 

of the Company.

Underlying Profit Reconciliation Table
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Significant Changes in State of Affairs

The following matters have occurred during the 

financial year, which significantly affected or may 

significantly affect the operations of the Group, the 

results of those operations, or the state of affairs of 

the Group in subsequent financial years.

The expansion of Company operated Bedshed 

stores

The revaluation of investment properties taking 

contract rental income into account.

After Balance Date Events

On 6 August 2009, the Company announced that a 

conditional offer had been accepted on the Brendale 

property in Queensland for $7.75m. The agreement is 

subject to the purchaser undertaking due diligence on 

the property. This due diligence is to be completed by 

30 September 2009. Settlement has been negotiated 

to occur no later than 30 June 2010.

Except for the above disposal, no matters or 

circumstances have arisen since the end of the 

financial year which significantly affect or may 

significantly affect the operations of the economic 

entity, the results of those operations, or the state of 

the economic entity in subsequent financial years.

Future Developments, Prospects and 
Business Strategies

The Company will look to further develop the 

Bedshed business through the expansion of its 

network of franchised stores whilst seeking to 

improve the financial performance of company 

owned and operated stores. Currently only one 

new company operated store located in Warners 

Bay, New South Wales is scheduled to be opened 

during the 2010 financial year, this will allow 

management to focus their activities on extracting 

better trading performance from existing stores 

and assisting franchisees in implementing 

operational improvements gained through the 

experience of managing Company operated stores. 

Single digit growth is expected in the coming 

year as retail trading improves on the back of 

increasing consumer confidence.

Environmental Issues

Joyce Corporation holds licences issued by the 

Environmental Protection Authority and various 

other authorities throughout Australia. These 

licences regulate the management of air and water 

quality, the storage and carriage of hazardous 

materials and disposal of wastes associated with 

the Groups properties. There has been no material 

known breaches associated with the Groups 

licence conditions.

As part of the ongoing testing of Joyce Corporation 

owned sites, it was found that traces of a chemical 

used by Joyce Foam Products was detected in the 

groundwater at the Moorebank property in NSW 

and the Elizabeth property in SA. The levels found 

were not high and to be prudent the Department 

of Environment and Conservation were notified.

Confirmation has been received from the 

Department of Environment and Conservation 

that no remediation work is required due to 

the low risk of harm to the environment at 

both of these locations, however, an ongoing 

monitoring program has been established to 

monitor the nature, extent and movement of the 

chemical found. The expected cost to monitor 

the groundwater will be low as bore holes have 

already been established. If future remedial work 

is required at the South Australian property, Joyce 

Corporation will be responsible under a condition 

of the sale contract.

Directors’ Report
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Information on Directors

Mr D A Smetana —

Non-Executive Chairman

Qualifications —Dip Comm 

FCPA FAIM FAICD

Experience —Mr Smetana 

has been Chairman of Joyce 

Corporation Ltd since 1984. He is also the Chairman 

of Bedshed Franchising Pty Ltd. He is a Director 

and President of the Industrial Foundation for 

Accident Prevention, Director of Edge Employment 

Solutions Inc, Vice President and Councillor of the 

WA Federation of Police and Community Youth 

Centres (Inc.), Director of Uranium Australia Ltd, a 

Director of St John of God Foundation and Chairman 

of the St John of God Comprehensive Cancer Centre 

Fundraising Committee.

His past board memberships include: Deputy 

Chairman of Youth Focus Inc (1998 - 2007), 

Deputy Chairman Western Power Corporation and 

Chairman of its Finance Committee until 2003, 

Chairman and National Councillor of the Defence 

Reserves Support Council - WA (1997 - 2006), 

Director of WA Symphony Orchestra until 2003.

His awards include the Ian Chisolm Award for 

Distinguished Service to Occupational Health 

& Safety, 2003 Centenary Medal for Service to 

Commerce and the Community and 1998 - WA 

Business Executive of the Year.

Interest in Ordinary Shares — 7,079,932

Interest in Options  — Nil

Mr M A Gurry — 

Non-Executive Director 

Qualifications — Bachelor of 

Science Dip AICD FAICD FAIM 

SF Fin

Experience —Mr Gurry 

was Managing Director of HBF from 1995 to 

2007 and prior to that he was President Asia 

Pacific of the DMR Group Ltd, an international 

consulting firm. From 1996 to 1999 he was 

Vice President of the Asian Association of 

Management Organisations, from 1997 to 1999 

National President of the Australian Institute of 

Management and from 1999 to 2008 Chairman 

of United Way WA Inc. Mr Gurry is Chairman of 

Foundation Housing Limited, Deputy Chairman of 

the Forest Products Commission, and Chairman 

of Reignite Pty Ltd and has served on numerous 

Boards including the Australian Health Insurance 

Association, The Australian Information Industry 

Association, The West Australian Ballet and 

Integrated Group Ltd. Mr Gurry is also chair 

of St Marys Cathedral Precinct Development 

Committee.

Interest in Ordinary Shares — Nil

Interest in Options — Nil

Special Responsibilities — Chairman of  

  Audit Committee

Directors’ Report
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Mr T R Hantke  

Non-Executive Director 

Qualifications — Bachelor of 

Commerce, FAIM, FAICD

Experience — Mr Hantke 

is Managing Director of his 

own consulting practice, Franchising Solutions 

Pty Ltd. Prior to this he was the CEO of Snap 

Franchising from 1988 - 2001. He has been a 

Director of Bedshed Franchising Pty Ltd since 

February 2002 and was appointed to the Joyce 

Board in June 2006. He was a board member of 

the Franchise Council of Australia 1989 - 1996; 

Member of Franchise Policy Council 1997 - 2002; 

is currently a Member of the ACCC’s Franchise 

Consultive Panel; Deputy Chairman of Lifeline WA 

and a National Board Member of Lifeline Australia 

since 2002, and the Chairman of Co-operative 

Purchasing Services Pty Ltd. Mr Hantke has 

extensive managerial experience in both small and 

large organisations and in various industries.

Interest in Ordinary Shares — Nil

Interest in Options — Nil

Special Responsibilities — Chairman of  

  Remuneration  

  Committee

Mr R Mahoney  

Executive Director 

Qualifications — Fellow of 

the Australian Institute of 

Management (FAIM) Member 

of the Institute of Company 

Directors (MAICD)

Experience — Mr Mahoney has been the 

Managing Director of Bedshed Franchising Pty Ltd 

and Joyce Corporation Ltd since January 2007. 

Prior to joining Joyce and Bedshed Mr Mahoney 

worked for Shell Oil in various executive positions 

in Europe, New Zealand and Australia. Latterly Mr 

Mahoney was the Strategic Projects Manager for 

the Retail Division in Australia. His previous role 

was as the General Manager of the Shell retail 

business in New Zealand. Mr Mahoney has over 

twenty years experience in retail management in 

various countries and has also served on several 

Boards in New Zealand.

Interest in Ordinary Shares — 18,000

Interest in Options — Nil

Mr A Mankarios 

Non-Executive Director 

Qualifications — Fellow of the 

Australian Institute of Company 

Directors, Master of Business 

Administration (SGSM), 

Certified Finance and Treasury 

Professional

Experience — Mr Mankarios has been the 

Managing Director of Oldfields Holdings Ltd 

since 2002 and has been a Director of Bedshed 

Franchising Pty Ltd since February 2008. Mr 

Mankarios has been a Board Member of Oldfields 

Holdings Ltd since 2001 and has thirteen years 

experience in the running and administration of a 

group of companies in the paint industry.

Interest in Ordinary Shares — 505,289

Interest in Options — Nil

Directors’ Report
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Remuneration Report (Audited)

This remuneration report outlines the director 
and executive remuneration arrangements of the 
Company and the Group in accordance with the 
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and 
its Regulations. For the purposes of this report, 
key management personnel (KMP) of the Group 
are defined as those persons having authority and 
responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling 
the major activities of the Company and the Group, 
directly or indirectly, including any director (whether 
executive or otherwise) of the parent company and 
includes the executives in the Parent and the Group 
receiving the highest remuneration.

For the purposes of this report, the term “executive” 
encompasses the Chief Executive, Executives and 
Company Secretary of the Parent and Group.

Details of key management personnel (including 
the executives of the Company and the Group)

Mr D A Smetana Director and Chairman 

Mr M A Gurry Director  

Mr T R Hantke Director   

Mr R Mahoney Managing Director 

Mr A Mankarios Director    

Mr M McLean Company Secretary 

  (Resigned 10 August 2009)

Mr G Culmsee General Manager of Operations  

  (Appointed 1 August 2008)

Mr S Jones National Merchandise Manager

Ms S Freedman National Marketing Manager 

A change in the organisational and authority 
structures of the Company during the year has 
resulted in a number of employees no longer 
being classified as key management personel as 

defined by accounting standards.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee Charter establishes 
the role of the Remuneration Committee which is 
to review and make recommendations on Board 
and executive Director remuneration: senior 
management remuneration; executive share plan 
participation; human resource and remuneration 

policies; and senior management succession 
planning, appointments and terminations

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration 
Committee includes reviewing and making 
recommendations on remuneration policies for the 
company including, in particular, those governing the 
directors, Managing Director and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee  comprises a 
majority of non-executive directors and at least 
three members. The Chairman of the committee 
is appointed by the Board and must be a non-
executive director.

The Remuneration Committee is required to meet 
as and when required by the Chairman. The 
committee may invite persons deemed appropriate 
to attend meetings and may take such independent 
advice as it considers appropriate. Any committee 
member may request the Chairman call a meeting.

The Remuneration Committee is required to 
assess its effectiveness periodically. In addition 
the Charter is required to be revised annually and 
updated as required.

Remuneration Policies

Remuneration levels for key management 

personnel of the Group are competitively set to 

attract, retain and motivate appropriately qualified 

and experienced directors and executives. 

Non- Executive Directors  

Non-Executive Directors’ fees are paid within the 

aggregate amount approved by shareholders from 

time to time. Total remuneration for all Non-Executive 

Directors, last approved by shareholders on 20 

November 2006, is not to exceed $400,000 per 

annum. The amount of aggregate remuneration 

sought to be approved by shareholders and the 

manner in which it is apportioned amongst Directors 

is reviewed annually. The Board considers the 

amount of Director fees being paid by comparable 

peer companies with similar responsibilities, and the 

experience of each Non-Executive Director when 

undertaking the review process. Directors’ fees cover 

all main Board activities (including membership of 

committees). 

Directors’ Report
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Executive Remuneration 

All executives receive a base salary (which 

is based on market rates for that position), 

superannuation, fringe benefits and short term 

performance incentives.

Fixed Remuneration

The level of fixed remuneration is set so as to 

provide a base level of remuneration which is 

both appropriate to the position and is competitive 

in the market. Fixed remuneration is reviewed 

annually by the Remuneration Committee and 

the process involves the review of Company and 

individual performance, and relevant comparative 

remuneration in the market.

Variable Remuneration - Short Term Incentive

The goals consist of a number of key performance 

indicators (KPI’s) covering both financial and 

non-financial, corporate and individual measures 

of performance.  Included in the measures are 

contribution to net profit before tax, cash targets 

and departmental functional KPI’s. At the end 

of the financial year the Board assesses the 

actual performance of the Group, the relevant 

segment and individual against the KPIs set at the 

beginning of the financial year. Should the Group 

achieve the set KPIs, the Board will reward the key 

management personnel with a bonus during the 

salary review. A percentage of a pre-determined 

maximum amount is awarded depending on 

results. No bonus is awarded where performance 

falls below the minimum.

Company performance, Shareholder Wealth and 
Director and Executive remuneration

The following table shows the gross revenue, 

profits and dividends for the last five years for the 

listed entity, as well as the share price at the end 

of the respective financial years.  

The sale of the Joyce Foam business in November 

2005 resulted in the 2006 Financials restated to 

exclude the foam businesses.                                                                                                                                   

Joyce Corporation Ltd acquired 100% of Bedshed 

Franchising Pty Ltd in April 2006, having 

previously held 49% shareholding.

2009  
$000 

2008 
$000 

2007  
$000 

2006  
$000 

2005 
$000

Revenue  27,847  18,068  15,092  7,157  1,689 

Net Profit (1,329)  2,066  3,197  4,451  2,539 

Share Price at Year-end $  0.41  1.08  1.26  1.03  0.72 

Dividends (Cents) Paid  4.50  9.00  9.50  11.50  5.00 

Employment Contracts

The employment conditions of the Managing 

Director, Mr R Mahoney and the specified 

executives are formalised in contracts of 

employment. Other than the Managing Director, 

who is employed by Joyce Corporation Ltd all other 

executives are permanent employees of Bedshed 

Franchising Pty Ltd. 

Managing Director

The Managing Director, Mr Mahoney is employed 

under a rolling contract.  Under ther terms of 

the contract   Mr Mahoney may resign from his 

position by giving 3 months written notice.  The 

Company may terminate the contract by providing 

6 months written notice and providing payment 

in lieu of notice based on 9 months of the base 

salary package.

The Company may terminate the contract 

immediately where gross misconduct occurs. 

Where termination with cause occurs Mr Mahoney 

is only entitled to that portion of remuneration 

that is fixed up to the date of termination.

The contract can be terminated at any time by 

mutual agreement between the Company and 

the Managing Director.  The agreement may 

also be terminated at any time if Mr Mahoney 

Directors’ Report
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Details of remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2009

The remuneration for each Director and each of the executive officers of the consolidated entity during 

the year was as follows:    
 

Short-term benefits Post 
Employment 

Benefits
2009 Cash, salary & 

commissions 
$000 

Cash bonus 

$000 

Non-cash 
benefit 
$000 

Other 

$000 

Super-
annuation  

$000
Key Management Person

Mr D A Smetana  23 - - -  119 
Mr M A Gurry  67 - - -  6 
Mr T R Hantke - - - -  73 
Mr R Mahoney  273  122 - -  50 
Mr A Mankarios  55 - - - - 
Mr M McLean  117  5  14 -  40 
Mr G Culmsee  125 -  23 -  13 
Mr S Jones  143  24  25 -  22 
Ms S Freedman  126  23 - -  13 

 929  174  62 -  336 

  Other Long-
term Benefits

 Share-based Payment Total Performance 
Related

2009 Other 
$000 

Equity 
$000 

Options 
$000 $000 %

Key Management Person
Mr D A Smetana -  -  -   142 - 
Mr M A Gurry -  -  -   73 - 
Mr T R Hantke -  -  -   73 - 
Mr R Mahoney -  -  -   445 30%
Mr A Mankarios -  -  -   55 - 
Mr M McLean -  -  -   176 12%
Mr G Culmsee -  -  -   161 - 
Mr S Jones -  -  -   214 12%
Ms S Freedman -  -  -   162 15%
 -  -  -   1,501 

is renderered unable to perform his duties due 

to ilness for any period agregating more than 

4 months in period of 12 months or for any 

continuous period of 3 months.

The contract may be terminated by Mr Mahoney 

by giving 7 days notice if there has been a material 

dimunition in the employees status.  Upon such 

termination Mr Mahoney shall be entitled to payment 

of an amount equal to 6 months base salary.

Other Executives

All executives have rolling contracts.  The 

Company can terminate the contract by providing 

two months written notice or providing payment 

in lieu of the notice period (based on the fixed 

component of the executives remuneration). The 

Company may terminate an executive for serious 

misconduct without notice. Where termination 

with cause occurs the executive is only entitled 

to that portion of remuneration that is fixed up to 

the date of termination.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

Short-term benefits  Post 
Employment 

Benefits
2008 Cash, salary & 

commissions 
$000 

Cash bonus  
 

$000

Non-cash 
benefit  
$000 

Other  
 

$000 

Super-
annuation 

$000
Key Management Person

Mr D A Smetana  29 - - -  136 
Mr M A Gurry  41 - - -  29 
Mr T R Hantke - - - -  66 
Mr R Mahoney  289 - - -  49 
Mr A Mankarios  18 - - - - 
Mr M McLean  122 -  14 -  12 
Mr J Wrathall  132 - - -  12 
Mr R Parker  108 - - -  10 
Mr T Goggin  61 - - -  6 
Mr D Sanders  22 -  4 -  2 
Mr M Zietoune  99 - - -  9 
Mr S Jones  135 -  25 -  20 
Ms M Vlahos  54 - - -  5 
Ms S Freedman  95 - - -  9 
Mr J Lewis  79 -  15 -  24 

 1,284 -  58 -  389 

Other Long-
term Benefits 

Share-based Payment Total Performance 
Related

2008 Other  

$000 

Equity  

$000 

Options 

$000 

 

$000 

 

%
Key Management Person
Mr D A Smetana - - -  165 - 
Mr M A Gurry - - -  70 - 
Mr T R Hantke - - -  66 - 
Mr R Mahoney - - -  338 - 
Mr A Mankarios - - -  18 - 
Mr M McLean - - -  148 - 
Mr J Wrathall - - -  144 - 
Mr R Parker - - -  118 - 
Mr T Goggin - - -  67 - 
Mr D Sanders - - -  28 - 
Mr M Zietoune - - -  108 - 
Mr S Jones - - -  180 - 
Ms M Vlahos - - -  59 - 
Ms S Freedman - - -  104 - 
Mr J Lewis - - -  118 - 

- - -  1,731 -
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Meetings of Directors

During the financial year, nineteen meetings of directors (including committees of directors) were held.

Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:

Directors’ Report

Directors’ names

Directors’ Meetings Committee Meetings

Audit Committee Remuneration

Number 
eligible to 

attend

Number 
attended

Number 
eligible to 

attend

Number 
attended

Number 
eligible to 

attend

Number 
attended

Mr D A Smetana   11  10  4 4 - - 

Mr M A Gurry   11  11  4 4 - - 

Mr T R Hantke   11  10  4 4 4 4

Mr R Mahoney   11  11 - - 4 2 

Mr A Mankarios   11  11  4 4 4 4

Indemnifying Officers or Auditor

During or since the end of the financial year the 

Company has given an indemnity or entered into 

an agreement to indemnify, or paid or agreed to 

pay insurance premiums as follows:

The Company  paid a premiun of $39,080 to 

insure all of the directors against liabilities for costs 

and expenses incurred by them in defending any 

legal proceedings arising out of their conduct while 

acting in the capacity of Director of the Company, 

other than conduct involving a wilful breach of 

duty in relation to the Company.  

Proceedings on Behalf of Company

No person has applied for leave of Court to 

bring proceedings on behalf of the Company 

or intervene in any proceedings to which the 

Company is a party for the purpose of taking 

responsibility on behalf of the company for all or 

any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such 

proceedings during the year.

Non-audit Services

The Board of Directors, in accordance with advice 

from the audit committee, is satisfied that the provision 

of non-audit services during the year is compatible 

with the general standard of independence for 

auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The 

Directors are satisfied that the services disclosed 

below did not compromise the external auditor’s 

independence for the following reasons: 

all non-audit services are reviewed and approved 

by the audit committee prior to commencement 

to ensure they do not adversely affect the 

integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and

the nature of the services provided do not 

compromise the general principles relating 

to auditor independence in accordance with 

APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional 

Accountants set by the Accounting 

Professional Ethical Standards Board. 

The following fees for non-audit services were 

paid/payable to the external auditors during the 

year ended 30 June 2009:    

     

$

Taxation services   37,000 

  37,000 
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

The lead auditor’s independence declaration 

for the year ended 30 June 2009 has been 

received. 

ASIC Class Order 98/100 Rounding of 
Amounts   

The Company is an entity to which ASIC Class 

Order 98/100 applies and, accordingly, amounts 

in the financial statements and Directors’ report 

have been rounded to the nearest thousand 

dollars.    

This Report of the Directors’, incorporating the 

Remuneration Report, is signed in accordance 

with a resolution of the Board of Directors.  

      

      

   

Mr R Mahoney

DIRECTOR

30 September 2008      

Directors’ Report
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

 

10 Kings Park Road 
West Perth WA 6005 
PO BOX 570 
West Perth WA 6872 
 
T  +61 8 9480 2000 
F  +61 8 9322 7787 
E  admin@gtwa.com.au 
W  www.grantthornton.com.au 
 
 

�
�

Grant Thornton (WA) Partnership  ABN 17 735 344 518, a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389. 
 
Grant Thornton Australia Limited is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd. Grant Thornton International Ltd and the member  
firms are not a worldwide partnership. Grant Thornton Australia Limited, together with its subsidiaries and related entities, delivers its services  
independently in Australia. 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. 
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Joyce Corporation Ltd
ABN: 80 009 116 269 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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Income Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2009

Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity 

2009
$000

2008
$000

2009
$000

2008
$000

Revenue 2  26,658  15,155 - - 

Cost of sales (10,914) (5,261) - - 

Gross Profit  15,744  9,894 - - 

Other revenue 2  1,189  913  931  577 

Other income 2  59  409 -  170 

Distribution expense (860) (463) - - 

Marketing expenses (923) (7) (18) - 

Occupancy expenses (3,003) (1,486) - - 

Administration expense (10,230) (7,567) (1,381) (889)

Other expenses (30) (373) (30) (25)

Loss on revaluation of investment property (2,820) (14) - - 

Finance costs (1,172) (869) (1,071) (928)

Gain on sale of investment property -  1,629 -  1,629 

Profit/(Loss) before income tax 3 (2,046)  2,066 (1,569)  534 

Income tax benefit 4  717 - - - 

Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations (1,329)  2,066 (1,569)  534 

Profit/(Loss) attributable to minority equity interest - - - - 

Profit/(Loss) attributable to members of the 

parent entity

 

(1,329)

 

 2,066 

 

(1,569)

 

 534 

Overall Operations

 

Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 8 (6.42)  9.98  

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 8 (6.42)  9.98  

 

Continuing Operations  

Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 8 (6.42)  9.98  

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share 8 (6.42)  9.98  

 

Underlying Operating Profit Before Tax     

The underlying profit before tax for the consolidated entity for the year ended 30 June 2009 was $1,603,000      

(2008: $1,290,000). Refer to note 3(a) for a reconciliation of underlying profit to net profit/(loss) before tax.   

  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity

2009
$000

2008
$000

2008
$000

2008 
$000

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 9  3,519  4,687  4  106 
Trade and other receivables 10  3,021  9,447  7,550  4,428 
Inventories 11  6,090  4,148 - - 
Other assets 17  1,218  178  76  72 

 13,848  18,460  7,630  4,606 
Non-current assets classified as held 

for sale

 

27

 

 7,550 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  21,398  18,460  7,630  4,606 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 10  377  528  18,662  24,885 
Other financial assets 12  6  6  1,891  1,891 
Property, plant and equipment 14  2,721  2,705  516  513 
Investment property 15  10,430  20,800 - - 
Deferred tax assets 20  250  262 - - 
Intangible assets 16  10,225  9,116 - - 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  24,009  33,417  21,069  27,289 
TOTAL ASSETS  45,407  51,877  28,699  31,895 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 18  4,859  7,728  142  198 
Borrowings 19  4,578  4,957  4,462  4,820 
Current tax liabilities 20  83 - - - 
Short-term provisions 21  590  474  308  261 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  10,110  13,159  4,912  5,279 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 19  8,475  8,514  7,939  7,938 
Deferred tax liabilities 20  2,358  3,169 - - 
Other long-term provisions 21  221  548  189  535 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  11,054  12,231  8,128  8,473 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  21,164  25,390  13,040  13,752 
NET ASSETS  24,243  26,487  15,659  18,143 

EQUITY
Issued capital 22  15,634  15,617  15,634  15,617 
Reserves 30  4,694  4,694 - - 
Retained earnings  3,915  6,176  25  2,526 
TOTAL EQUITY  24,243  26,487  15,659  18,143 
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Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2009



Share Capital 

 
Note Ordinary Retained 

Earnings
Asset 

Revaluation 
Reserve

Financial 
Assets 

Reserve
Total

Consolidated Group    $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 July 2007   15,595  4,644  2,231  2,959  25,429 
Profit attributable to members of parent 
entity  

-  2,066 - -  2,066 

Payment received on partly paid shares   22 - - -  22 
Transfers to and from reserve  

— asset revaluation -  708 (708) - - 
Deferred Tax Liability  - -  212 -  212 

Sub-total   15,617  7,418  1,735  2,959  27,729 
Dividends paid or provided for 7 - (1,242) - - (1,242)
Balance at 30 June 2008   15,617  6,176  1,735  2,959  26,487 
Payment received on partly paid shares   17 - - -  17 
(Loss)/Profit attributable to members of 
parent entity  

- (1,329) - - (1,329)

Sub-total   15,634  4,847  1,735  2,959  25,175 
Dividends paid or provided for 7 - (932) - - (932)
Balance at 30 June 2009   15,634  3,915  1,735  2,959  24,243 

  Share Capital 
 Note Ordinary Retained 

Earnings
Asset 

Revaluation
Reserve

Financial 
Assets 

Reserve

Total

Parent Entity  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 July 2007  15,595  2,524  497 -  18,616 
Profit attributable to members of parent entity -  535 - -  535 
Transfers to and from reserves - 
— asset revaluation -  709 (709) - - 
Payment received on partly paid shares  22 - - -  22 

Deferred Tax Liability - -  212 -  212 
Sub-total  15,617  3,768 - -  19,385 
Dividends paid or provided for - (1,242) - - (1,242)
Balance at 30 June 2008 7  15,617  2,526 - -  18,143 
Payment received on partly paid shares  17 - - -  17 
(Loss)/Profit attributable to members of 
parent entity - (1,569) - - (1,569)
Sub-total  15,634  957 - -  16,591 
Dividends paid or provided for - (932) - - (932)
Balance at 30 June 2009  7  15,634  25 - -  15,659 

    
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.    
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Statements of Changes in Equity 
for the Year Ended 30 June 2009



Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity

2009
$000

2008
$000

2009
$000

2008 
$000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers  34,231  16,449  219  430 
Interest received  16  5  930  519 
Payments to suppliers and employees (35,564) (17,625) (1,781) (1,074)
Finance costs (1,172) (868) (1,071) (847)
Net cash used in operating activities 26 (2,489) (2,039) (1,703) (972)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investment property  4,200 -  4,200 - 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (436) (1,816) - - 
Purchase of other non-current assets - (142) - - 
Loans to associated entities -  715 - - 
Payment for intangible assets (1,109) - - - 
Loans to controlled entities - - (1,326) (2,710)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing 

activities  2,655 (1,243)  2,874 (2,710)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings -  4,910 -  4,910 

Proceeds received from partly paid shares  17  22  17  22 
Repayment of borrowings (419) - (358) - 
Dividends paid by parent entity (932) (1,242) (932) (1,242)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing 

activities (1,334)  3,690 (1,273)  3,690 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

held

(1,168)  408 (102)  8 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 

financial year 9  4,687  4,279  106  98 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 

financial year 9  3,519  4,687  4  106 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Cash Flow Statements  
for the Year Ended 30 June 2009
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the Year Ended 30 June 2009

This financial report was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 30 September 2009 and includes the consolidated financial 
statements and notes of Joyce Corporation Ltd and controlled entities (‘Consolidated Group’ or ‘Group’), and the separate financial statements and notes of Joyce 
Corporation Ltd as an individual parent entity (‘Parent Entity’).       

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting 
Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in a financial report containing relevant and reliable 
information about transactions, events and conditions. Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also 
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.  Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report are presented below and 
have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of 
selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

(a) Principles of Consolidation

 A controlled entity is any entity over which Joyce Corporation Ltd has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities. In assessing the power to govern, the existence and effect of holdings of actual and potential voting rights are considered. 

 A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 13 to the financial statements.

 As at reporting date, the assets and liabilities of all controlled entities have been incorporated into the consolidated financial statements as well as their results 
for the year then ended.  Where controlled entities have entered (left) the consolidated group during the year, their operating results have been included 
(excluded) from the date control was obtained (ceased).

 All inter-group balances and transactions between entities in the consolidated group, including any unrealised profits or losses, have been eliminated on 
consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with those adopted by the parent entity.

 Minority interests, being that portion of the profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity interests held by persons outside the group, are 
shown separately within the Equity section of the consolidated Balance Sheet and in the consolidated Income Statement.

 Business Combinations

Business combinations occur where control over another business is obtained and results in the consolidation of its assets and liabilities.  All business 
combinations, including those involving entities under common control, are accounted for by applying the purchase method.

The purchase method requires an acquirer of the business to be identified and for the cost of the acquisition and fair values of identifiable assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities to be determined as at acquisition date, being the date that control is obtained.  Cost is determined as the aggregate of fair values of 
assets given, equity issued and liabilities assumed in exchange for control together with costs directly attributable to the business combination.  Any deferred 
consideration payable is discounted to present value using the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

Goodwill is recognised initially at the excess of cost over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
recognised. If the fair value of the acquirer’s interest is greater than cost, the surplus is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Income Tax

 The income tax expense (revenue) for the year comprises current income tax expense (income) and deferred tax expense (income).

 Current income tax expense charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income calculated using applicable income tax rates enacted, or 
substantially enacted, as at reporting date.  Current tax liabilities (assets) are therefore measured at the amounts expected to be paid to (recovered from) the 
relevant taxation authority.

 Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances during the year as well unused tax losses.

 Current and deferred income tax expense (income) is charged or credited directly to equity instead of the profit or loss when the tax relates to items that are 
credited or charged directly to equity.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets also result where amounts have been fully expensed but future tax deductions are available.  No 
deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on 
accounting or taxable profit or loss.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, 
based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date.  Their measurement also reflects the manner in which management expects to recover 
or settle the carrying amount of the related asset or liability.

 Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised.

 Where temporary differences exist in relation to investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates, and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not 
recognised where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is not probable that the reversal will occur in the foreseeable 
future.

 Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it is intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation 
and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists, 
the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities 
where it is intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur in future periods in which 
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled.
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 Tax Consolidation

Joyce Corporation Ltd and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax consolidated group under tax consolidation legislation.  Each 
entity in the group recognises its own current and deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such taxes are measured using the ‘stand-alone taxpayer’ approach to 
allocation.  Current tax liabilities (assets) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits in the subsidiaries are immediately transferred 
to the head entity.

The group notified the Australian Tax Office that it had formed an income tax consolidated group to apply from 1 July 2003. The tax consolidated group has 
entered a tax funding arrangement whereby each company in the group contributes to the income tax payable by the group in proportion to their contribution 
to the group’s taxable income. Differences between the amounts of net tax assets and liabilities derecognised and the net amounts recognised pursuant to the 
funding arrangement are recognised as either a contribution by, or distribution to the head entity.

(c) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The method of inventory valuation is weighted average cost.

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of fixed assets constructed within the consolidated group includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing costs and an appropriate proportion 
of fixed and variable overheads. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs 
and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

 Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including capitalised lease assets, but excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 
asset’s useful life to the consolidated group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the 
shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

 Class of Fixed Asset  Depreciation Rate

 Leasehold improvements 5-33%

 Plant and equipment  6%

 Leased plant and equipment 16-20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are included in the income 
statement.

(e) Investment Property

Investment property is held to generate long-term rental yields. All tenant leases are on an arm’s length basis. Investment properties are carried at fair value, 
determined annually by independent valuers. Changes to fair value are recorded in the income statement as other income/expenses.

(f) Leases 

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership that are transferred 
to entities in the consolidated group are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the 
amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease 
payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease term. Lease payments for operating leases, 
where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. Lease incentives 
under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.

(g) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets Other Than Goodwill

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use.  For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash generating units).  
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are tested for possible reversal of the impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the impairment may have reversed.

(h) Intangibles

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in 
the net fair value of the acquirees identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash 
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units 
or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated included:

— Bedshed Franchising cash generating unit

— Bedshed Claremont cash generating unit

— Bedshed Joondalup cash generating unit

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash generating units), to which the goodwill relates.

The Group performs its impairment testing as at 30 June each year using a value in use, discounted cash flow methodology for all cash generating units to 
which goodwill has been allocated.  Further details on the methodology and assumptions used are outlined in note 16.

When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses recognised 
for goodwill are not subsequently reversed.
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Goodwill is initially recorded at the amount by which the purchase price for a business or for an ownership interest in a controlled entity exceeds the fair value 
attributed to its net assets at date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses.

(i) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are converted to Australian currency at the rates of exchange applicable at the dates of the transactions. 
Amounts receivable and payable in foreign currencies at balance date are converted at the rates of exchange ruling at that date.

The gains and losses from conversion of assets and liabilities, whether realised or unrealised, are included in profit from ordinary activities as they arise.

(j) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

 Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each of the group’s entities is measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which that entity operates. 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars which is the parent entity’s functional and presentation currency.

 Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency 
monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the income statement, except where deferred in equity as a qualifying 
cash flow or net investment hedge.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in equity to the extent that the gain or loss is directly recognised 
in equity, otherwise the exchange difference is recognised in the income statement.

 Group companies

The financial results and position of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the group’s presentation currency are translated as follows:

— assets and liabilities are translated at year-end exchange rates prevailing at that reporting date;

— income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period where this is not materially different from the exchange rate at the date of  
 transactions, and

— retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are transferred directly to the groups foreign currency translation reserve in the balance 
sheet. These differences are recognised in the income statement in the period in which the operation is disposed.

(k) Employee Benefits

Provision is made for the company’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance date. Employee benefits expected 
to be settled within one year together with entitlements arising from wages and salaries and annual leave which will be settled after one year, have been 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled plus related on-costs. Other employee benefits payable later than one year have 
been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits.

Contributions are made by the economic entity to employee superannuation funds and are charged as expenses when incurred.

Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits.

(l) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

(m) Financial Instruments

 Recognition and Initial Measurement

Financial instruments, incorporating financial assets and financial liabilities, are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument.  Trade date accounting is adopted for financial assets that are delivered within timeframes established by marketplace convention.

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transactions costs where the instrument is not classified as at fair value through profit or loss.  
Transaction costs related to instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are expensed to profit or loss immediately. Financial instruments are 
classified and measured as set out below.

 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expires or the asset is transferred to another party whereby the entity 
no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset.  Financial liabilities are derecognised where the 
related obligations are either discharged, cancelled or expire.  The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed is recognised in profit or loss.

 Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at either fair value, amortised cost using the effective interest rate method or cost.  Fair value represents 
the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties.  Where available, quoted prices in an active 
market are used to determine fair value.  In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Amortised cost is calculated as (a) the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition (b) less principal repayments 
(c) plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount initially recognised and the maturity amount calculated using the 
effective interest method; and (d) less any reduction for impairment.

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or 
when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. 
Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a consequential recognition of an income or expense in 
profit or loss.
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The group does not designate any interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint venture entities as being subject to the requirements of accounting standards 
specifically applicable to financial instruments.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss when they are held for trading for the purpose of short term profit taking, where they are 
derivatives not held for hedging purposes, or designated as such to avoid an accounting mismatch or to enable performance evaluation where a group 
of financial assets is managed by key management personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment 
strategy.  Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable payments, and it is the group’s 
intention to hold these investments to maturity.  They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated as such or that are not classified in any of the other 
categories.  They comprise investments in the equity of other entities where there is neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments. They are 
held at fair value with subsequent changes in value taken directly through equity.

(v) Financial Liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

 Fair value

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to determine the fair value for all unlisted 
securities, including recent arm’s length transactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models.

 Impairment

At each reporting date, the group assess whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been impaired. In the case of available-for 
sale financial instruments, a significant or prolonged decline in the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether an impairment has arisen. 
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

 Financial Guarantees

Where material, financial guarantees issued, which  requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a 
specified debtor fails to make payment when due, are recognised as a financial liability at fair value on initial recognition.

The guarantee is subsequently measured at the higher of the best estimate of the obligation and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative 
amortisation in accordance with AASB 118: Revenue.  Where the entity gives guarantees in exchange for a fee, revenue is recognised under AASB 118.

The fair value of financial guarantee contracts has been assessed using a probability weighted discounted cash flow approach. The probability has been 
based on:

– the likelihood of the guaranteed party defaulting in a year period;

– the proportion of the exposure that is not expected to be recovered due to the guaranteed party defaulting; and

– the maximum loss exposed if the guaranteed party were to default.

(n) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

(o) Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds to the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
goods and the cessation of all involvement in those goods.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which, for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument.  Dividend 
revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established.

Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon completion of the service to the customers.

Revenue from the franchising activity is recognised based on business written sales from franchised stores.

Rental revenue is recognised monthly as defined in the lease agreements.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

(p) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian 
Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and 
payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed 
as operating cash flows.

(q) Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.

(r) Rounding of Amounts

The parent entity has applied the relief available to it under ASIC Class Order 98/100 and accordingly, amounts in the financial report and directors’ report 
have been rounded off to the nearest $1,000.
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(s) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that 
may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

 Key Estimates — Impairment

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an 
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts 
incorporate a number of key estimates.

No impairment has been recognised in respect of goodwill for the year ended 30 June 2009.

 Key Estimates — Investment Property

The group assesses investment property values at each reporting date by obtaining certificates of valuations from licensed valuers based on accounting 
standards.

For the year ended  30 June 2009 the investment property values decreased by $2,820,000 (2008:$14,000) and this value was bought to account to reflect 
the current market value of the properties in the accounts.

(t) New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods 

The following Australian Accounting Standards have been issued or amended and are applicable to the Parent Enity and Consolidated Group but are not yet 
effective.  They have not been adopted in preparation of the financial statements at reporting date.      
     

           

New Standard Superseeded 
Standard

Explanation of amendments not yet effective Effective date 
(reporting periods 
ending on or after)

Impact of New Standard Expected date 
of adoption

Accounting 
Standards 
AASB 1 First 
time adoption 
of Australian 
Accounting 
Standards (May 
2009) – AASB 1R

AASB 1 First 
Time adoption 
of Australian 
Equivalents to 
International 
Financial 
Reporting 
Standards (June 
2007)

As this is not the first year of adoption of IFRSs, 
these amendments will not have any impact on 
the entity’s financial report.

30 June 2010 None 1 July 2009

AASB 3 Business 
Combinations 
(March 2008) – 
AASB 3R

AASB 3 Business 
Combinations 
(April 2007)

AASB 3R amends how entities account 
for business combinations and changes in 
ownership interests in subsidiaries. Many 
changes have been made to this standard 
affecting acquisition related costs, step 
acquisitions, measurement of goodwill and 
contingent considerations. AASB 3 also replaces 
the term “Minority Interest” with “Non-controlling 
Interest”. This standard can be early adopted, but 
only for reporting periods that begin on or after 30 
June 2007. AASB 3 is applied prospectively. 

Business 
combinations 
occurring on or 
after an annual 
reporting beginning 
on or after 1 July 
2009

These standards are 
applicable prospectively 
and so will only affect 
relevant transactions and 
consolidations occuring 
from the date of application. 
In this regard its impact on 
the Group is not able to be 
determined. 

1 July 2009

AASB 8 Operating 
Segments 
(February 2007)

AASB 114 
Segment Reporting 
(September 2005)

AASB 8 supersedes AASB 114. AASB 8 has a 
different scope of application to AASB 114; it 
is applicable only to listed entities and  those in 
the process of listing, and requires that segment 
information be disclosed using the management 
approach. This may result in a different set of 
segments being identified than those previously 
disclosed under AASB 114.

31 December 2009 AASB 8 is a disclosure 
standard therefore has no 
impact on the entity’s reported 
position and performance. 
The new standard could 
result in changes to operating 
segments disclosures within 
the financial report.

1 July 2009

AASB 123 
Borrowing Costs 
(June 2007) – 
AASB 123R

AASB 123 
Borrowing Costs 
(July 2004)

AASB 123R incorporates amendments removing 
the option to immediately expense borrowing 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset.

31 December 2009 As the entity does not have 
borrowings associated 
with qualifying assets, 
these amendments are not 
expected to have any impact 
on the entity’s financial report. 

1 July 2009
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New Standard Superseeded 
Standard

Explanation of amendments not yet effective Effective date 
(reporting periods 
ending on or after)

Impact of New Standard Expected date 
of adoption

AASB 101 
Presentation 
of Financial 
Statements 
(September 2007) 
– AASB 101R

AASB 101 
Presentation 
of Financial 
Statements (July 
2007)

AASB 101R contains a number of changes from 
the previous AASB 101. The main changes are to 
require that an entity must:

(‘comprehensive income’) either in one statement 
of comprehensive income or in two statements 
(a separate income statement and a statement of 
comprehensive income)

position (balance sheet) as at the beginning of 
the earliest comparative period when the entity 
applies an accounting policy retrospectively, 
makes a retrospective restatement, or reclassifies 
items in its financial statements

of other comprehensive income

components of other comprehensive income

There are other changes to terminology, however 
these are not mandatory.

31 December 2009 AASB 101R does not affect 
recognition or measurement 
criteria, therefore the changes 
are not expected to have any 
impact on the entity’s reported 
financial position. 

1 July 2009

AASB 127 
Consolidated and 
Separate Financial 
Statements 
(March 2008) – 
AASB 127R

AASB 127 
Consolidated and 
Separate Financial 
Statements (July 
2004)

AASB 127R amends how entities account 
for business combinations and changes in 
ownership interests in subsidiaries. Many 
changes were made to this standard affecting 
acquisitions and disposals which do not result 
in a change of control, partial disposals where  
control is lost, attribution of profit or loss to 
non-controlling interests and loss of significant 
influence or control in relation to Associates 
and Joint Ventures. AASB 127 replaces 
the term “Minority Interest” with the “Non-
controlling Interest”. AASB 127 is applied 
retrospectively, with certain exceptions relating 
to the significant changes made in this revision.

30 June 2010 As the transitional provision 
of AASB 127 provide that the 
changes to the recognition 
and measurement criteria 
within AASB 127  resulting 
from this revision do not apply 
retrospectively to business 
combinations effected prior 
to the amendments being 
adopted, this standard is not 
expected to have any impact 
on the entity’s financial report. 

1 July 2009

AASB 2007-3 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards arising 
from AASB 8 
[AASB 5, AASB 6, 
AASB 102, AASB 
107, AASB 119, 
AASB 127, AASB 
134, AASB 136, 
AASB 1023 & 
AASB 1038]

Various AASB 2007-3 consequentially amends a 
number of standards arising from the issue of 
AASB 8. These amendments result from the 
changing the name of the segment reporting 
standard to AASB 8.

31 December 2009 AASB 2007-3 is a disclosure 
standard and therefore has no 
impact on the entity’s reported 
position or performance. 

1 July 2009



43      Joyce Corporation Ltd Annual Report 2009

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the Year Ended 30 June 2009

New Standard Superseeded 
Standard

Explanation of amendments not yet effective Effective date 
(reporting periods 
ending on or after)

Impact of New Standard Expected date 
of adoption

AASB 2007-6 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards arising 
from AASB 123 
[AASB 1, AASB 
101, AASB 107, 
AASB 111, 
AASB 116 & 
AASB 138 and 
Interpretations 1 
& 12]

Various The revision of AASB 123 necessitates 
consequential amendments to a number 
of existing Standards. The amendments 
principally remove references to expensing 
borrowing costs on qualifying assets, as AASB 
123 was revised to require such borrowing 
costs to be capitalised.

31 December 2009 As the entity does not have 
borrowings associated 
with qualifying assets, 
these amendments are not 
expected to have any impact 
on the entity’s financial report. 

1 July 2009

AASB 2007-8 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards arising 
from AASB 101

Various AASB 2007-8 consequentially amends a number 
of AASB’s as a result of the reissue of AASB 101. 
Some of the changes include changing the terms: 

purpose financial statements’

in application paragraphs, where relevant, of 
Australian Accounting Standards (including 
Interpretations) to better align with IFRS 
terminology.

31 December 2009 As the changes do not affect 
recognition or measurement 
criteria, the changes are not 
expected to have any impact 
on the entity’s reported 
financial position and 
performance. 

1 July 2009

AASB 2007-
10 Further 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards arising 
from AASB 101

Various AASB 2007-10 makes a number of 
consequential amendments to a number of 
accounting standards arising from the revision of 
AASB 101 in September 2007. The changes are 
largely to terminology for example changing the 
term ‘general purpose financial report’ to ‘general 
purpose financial statements’ and the term 
‘financial report’ to ‘financial statements’, where 
relevant, in Australian Accounting Standards 
(including Interpretations) to better align with 
IFRS terminology.

31 December 2009 As the changes do not affect 
recognition or measurement 
criteria, the changes are not 
expected to have any impact 
on the entity’s reported 
financial position and 
performance. 

1 July 2009

AASB 2008-1 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standard – Share-
based Payments:  
Vesting Conditions 
and Cancellations 
[AASB 2]

AASB 2 Share-
based Payments 
(June 2007)

AASB 2008-1 was issued after the AASB made 
changes to AASB 2 Share Based Payments 
including:

conditions and performance conditions only, and 
that other features of a share-based payment are 
not vesting conditions.

Cancellations, whether by the entity or by other 
parties, should be accounted for consistently.

31 December 2009 Unless the entity enters 
into share-based payment 
transactions in future 
reporting periods, these 
amendments are not 
expected to have any impact 
on the entity’s financial report. 

1 July 2009



44      Joyce Corporation Ltd Annual Report 2009

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the Year Ended 30 June 2009

New Standard Superseeded 
Standard

Explanation of amendments not yet effective Effective date 
(reporting periods 
ending on or after)

Impact of New Standard Expected date 
of adoption

AASB 2008-3 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards arising 
from AASB 3 
and AASB 127 
[AASBs 1, 2, 
4, 5, 7, 101, 
107, 112, 114, 
116, 121, 128, 
131, 132, 133, 
134, 136, 137, 
138 & 139 and 
Interpretations 9 
& 107]

Various AASB 2008-3 was issued after the AASB revised 
AASB 3 and AASB 127, as consequential 
amendments were necessary to other Australian 
Accounting Standards.

30 June 2010 See above for AASB 3 and 
AASB 127 information. 

1 July 2009

AASB 2008-5 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards arising 
from the Annual 
Improvements 
Project [AASB 5, 
7, 101, 102, 107, 
108, 110, 116, 
118, 119, 120, 
123, 127, 128, 
129, 131, 132, 
134, 136, 138, 
139, 140, 141, 
1023 & 1038].

Various AASB 2008-5 makes a number of minor, but 
necessary amendments to different Standards 
arising from the annual improvements project. 
The amendments largely clarify accounting 
treatments where previous practice had varied, 
with some new or amended requirements 
introduced. The changes addressed include 
accounting for advertising and promotional 
expenditure, investment property under 
construction and the reclassification to 
inventories of property, plant and equipment 
previously held for rental when the assets cease 
to be rented and are held for sale.

31 December 2009 The changes are not expected 
to have any material impact 
on the entity’s reported 
financial position and 
performance. 

1 July 2009

AASB 2008-6   
Further 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards arising 
from the Annual 
Improvements 
Project [AASB 1 & 
AASB 5]

Various AASB 2008-6 makes further amendments arising 
from the annual improvements project. These 
amendments are made to AASB 1 and AASB 5 
to include requirements relating to a sale plan 
involving the loss of control of a subsidiary, and 
the requirements for all assets and liabilities of 
such subsidiaries to be classified as held for sale. 
Disclosure requirements are also clarified.

31 December 2009 As the entity does not 
have current plans to sell 
any subsidiaries, these 
amendments are not 
expected to have any impact 
on the entity’s financial report. 

1 July 2009

AASB 2008-7 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards – Cost 
of an Investment 
in a Subsidiary, 
Jointly Controlled 
Entity or Associate 
[AASB 1, AASB 
118, AASB 121, 
AASB 127 & 
AASB 136]

Various AASB 2008-7 makes changes to a number 
of accounting standards, for the purpose of 
reducing the burden on parent entities when 
complying with AASB 127 and measuring the 
cost of a subsidiary at acquisition in their separate 
financial statements in certain circumstances. 
The amendments are to apply only on initial 
application of Australian Equivalents to 
International Financial Reporting Standards 
(AASBs).

31 December 2009 As this is not the first year 
of adoption of IFRSs, these 
amendments will not have any 
impact on the entity’s financial 
report. 

1 July 2009
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New Standard Superseeded 
Standard

Explanation of amendments not yet effective Effective date 
(reporting periods 
ending on or after)

Impact of New Standard Expected date 
of adoption

AASB 2008-13 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards arising 
from AASB 
Interpretation 17 
– Distributions of 
Noncash Assets 
to Owners [AASB 
5 & AASB 110]

Various AASB 2008-13 makes amendments to AASB 
5 and AASB 110 resulting from the issue of 
Interpretation 17. The amendments relate to the 
classification, presentation and measurement of 
non-current assets held for distribution to owners 
and the disclosure requirements for dividends 
that are declared after the reporting period but 
before the financial statements are authorised 
for issue.

30 June 2010 As the entity has not declared 
any non-cash dividends to 
owners during the year, this 
interpretation is not expected 
to have any impact on the 
entity’s financial report.

1 July 2009

AASB 2009-4 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards arising 
from the Annual 
Improvements 
Project [AASB 
2, AASB 138 
and AASB 
Interpretations 9 
& 16]

N/A Makes various amendments to a number of 
standards and interpretations in line with the 
IASB annual improvements project.

30 June 2010 The changes are not expected 
to have any material impact 
on the entity's reported 
financial position and 
performance.

1 July 2009

AASB 2009-05  
Further 
amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards arising 
from the Annual 
Improvements 
Project [AASB 5, 
8, 101, 107, 118, 
136, 139]

N/A Makes various amendments to a number of 
standards and interpretations in line with the 
IASB annual improvements project.  

31 December 2010 The changes are not expected 
to have any material impact 
on the entity's reported 
financial position and 
performance.

1 July 2010
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Note 2 Revenue and Other Income Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

Sales Revenue
— sale of goods  19,915  9,358 - - 
— provision of services  6,743  5,797 - - 
Total Sales Revenue  26,658  15,155 - - 

Other Revenue
— interest received 2(a)  16  24  930  539 
— rental revenue for property investment   878  889  1  38 
— subsidies received  295 - - - 
Total Other Revenue  1,189  913  931  577 
Total Sales Revenue and Other Revenue  27,847  16,068  931  577 

Other Income
— gain on disposal of plant and equipment  4 - - - 
— write back of provisions -  239 -  170 
— other income  55  170 - - 
Total Other Income  59  409 -  170 

(a) Interest revenue from:
— wholly-owned controlled entities - -  929  519 
— other persons  16  24  1  20 
Total interest revenue on financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss  16  24  930  539 

Note 3  Result for the Year Consolidated Group Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008
(a) Underlying Operating Profit Before Tax $000 $000 $000 $000

Net Profit/Loss before tax as per Income Statement   (2,046)  2,066 (1,569)  534 
Adjustments to arrive at underlying profit
Gain on disposal of investment property - (1,629) - (1,629)
Legal costs assocated with franchisee actions  829  839 - - 
Revaluation of investment properties  2,820  14 - - 
Net effect of underlying profit/(loss) adjustments  3,649 (776) - (1,629)
Underlying profit before tax  1,603  1,290 (1,569) (1,095)

(b) Expenses

Cost of sales  10,914  5,261 - - 

Interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss:
— other persons  1,172  869  1,071  928 
Total interest expense  1,172  869  1,071  928 

Bad and doubtful debts:
— trade receivables   - (27) - - 
Total bad and doubtful debts - (27) - - 

Rental expense on operating leases
— minimum lease payments  3,112  1,337 - - 

Loss on revaluation of investment property   2,820  14 - - 
Write-off of obsolete stock -  71 - - 

(c) Significant Revenue and Expenses
The following significant revenue and expense items are relevant in explaining the 
financial performance:
Consideration on disposal of investment property -  4,200 -  4,200 
Carrying amount of net assets sold - (2,571) - (2,571)
Net gain on disposal of investment property -  1,629 -  1,629 

(d) Depreciation, impairment included in income statements
Depreciation  425  171 -  5 
Impairment -  38 
Total depreciation and impairment  425  209 -  5 

(e) Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries  5,590  3,842  451  248 
Defined contribution superannuation expense  729  425  233  93 
Other employee benefits expense  12  15  9  8 

 6,331  4,282  693  349 

 



47      Joyce Corporation Ltd Annual Report 2009

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the Year Ended 30 June 2009

Note 4 Income Tax Expense Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

(a)   The components of tax expense comprise:
Current tax  83 - - - 
Deferred tax 20 (823) - - - 
Under provision in respect of prior years  24 - - - 

(716) - - - 
(b)   The prima facie tax on profit from ordinary activities  

before income tax is reconciled to the income tax as follows:

Prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary activities  
before income tax at 30% (2008: 30%)
— consolidated group (614)  620 - -
— parent entity  - - (471)  160 
Add Tax effect of:
Tax effect of:
— other non-allowable items  4  254 - (24)
— under provision for income tax in prior year  24 - - - 
— Tax Effect on Gain on Sale of Property -  635 -  635 

(586)  1,509 (471)  771 
Less Tax effect of:
Recoupment of prior year tax losses not previously brought to account  131  1,509 (471)  771 
Income tax benefit attributable to entity (717) - - - 

The applicable weighted average effective tax rates are as follows: (35.0%) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Note 5  Interests of Key Management Personnel (KMP)      
 

Compensation Practices           

Refer to the Remuneration Report contained in the Report of the Directors’ for details of the remuneration paid or payable to each member of Key Management 
Personnel of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2009.

The totals of remuneration paid to KMP of the Company and the Group during the year are as follows:      
           

    2009  2008
    $000  $000   

 Short-term employee benefits 1,165  1,342    

 Post-employment benefits 336   389    

 Other long term benefits -  -    

 Termination benefits -  -    

 Share-based payments - -

  1,501 1,731    

           

KMP Shareholdings           

           

The number of ordinary shares in Joyce Corporation Ltd held during the financial year by each KMP of the Group is as follows:-   
 

Balance at  
beginning of year

Received as 
Compensation

Options Exercised Net Change Other* Balance at  
end of year

30 June 2009

Mr D A Smetana  6,890,310 - -  189,622  7,079,932 

Mr M A Gurry - - - - - 

Mr T R Hantke - - - - - 

Mr R Mahoney - - -  18,000  18,000 

Mr A Mankarios  505,289 - - -  505,289 

Mr M McLean - - - - - 

Mr G Culmsee - - - - - 

Mr S Jones  5,000 - - (5,000) - 

Ms S Freedman - - - - - 

 7,400,599 - -  202,622  7,603,221 
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Balance at  
beginning of year

Received as 
Compensation

Options Exercised Net Change Other* Balance at  
end of year

30 June 2008

Mr D A Smetana  6,824,310 - -  66,000  6,890,310 

Mr M A Gurry - - - - - 

Mr T R Hantke - - - - - 

Mr R Mahoney - - - - - 

Mr A Mankarios  505,289 - - -  505,289 

Mr M McLean - - - - - 

Mr J Wrathall - - - - - 

Mr R Parker - - - - - 

Mr T Goggin - - - - - 

Mr D Sanders - - - - - 

Mr M Zietoune - - - - - 

Mr S Jones - - -  5,000  5,000 

Ms M Vlahos - - - - - 

Ms S Freedman - - - - - 

Mr J Lewis - - - - - 

 7,329,599 - -  71,000  7,400,599 

* Net Change Other refers to shares purchased or sold during the financial year. 

 Other KMP Transactions 

There have been no other transactions involving equity instruments other than those described in the tables above.

For details of other transactions with KMP, refer to Note 28: Related Party Transactions. 

Note 6  Auditors’ Remuneration      

Consolidated Group Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

Remuneration of the auditor of the parent entity for:
— auditing or reviewing the financial report  121  57  104  57 
— taxation services provided by related practice of auditor  37  23  37  23 

Remuneration of other auditors of subsidiaries for:
— auditing or reviewing the financial report of subsidiaries  1 - - - 

Note 7  Dividends

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

Distributions paid
Final unfranked ordinary dividend of 3.0 (2008: 3.00 cents) cents per share  621  621  621  621 
Interim unfranked ordinary dividend of 1.5 (2008: 3.0) cents per share  311  621  311  621 

 932  1,242  932  1,242 
(a) To date the directors are yet to recommend the payment of a final dividend out 

of retained profits at 30 June 2009. (2008: 3 cents per share, unfranked)
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Note 8  Earnings per Share Consolidated Group
2009 2008
$000 $000

(a) Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss

(Loss)/Profit after tax (1,329)  2,066 
Earnings used to calculate basic EPS (1,329)  2,066 
Earnings used in the calculation of dilutive EPS (1,329)  2,066 

(b) Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss from continuing operations
Profit from continuing operations (1,329)  2,066 
Earnings used in the calculation of dilutive EPS from continuing operations (1,329)  2,066 

No. No.
(c) Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used in calculating basic EPS  20,701,623  20,701,623 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used in calculating dilutive EPS  20,701,623  20,701,623 

(d) Classification of Securities      

The following securities have been classified as ordinary shares and are included in the determination of
basic and dilutive EPS:
- ordinary shares issued at $1.955 and paid to $1.215  380,000  380,000 

Note 9  Cash and Cash Equivalents Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

Cash at bank and in hand  3,519  4,687  4  106 
29  3,519  4,687  4  106 

Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statement is 
reconciled to items in the balance sheet as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents  3,519  4,687  4  106 
Bank overdrafts 19 (4,462) (4,820) (4,462) (4,820)

(943) (133) (4,458) (4,714)

Note 10  Trade and Other Receivables Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

CURRENT
Trade receivables  3,036  3,741 -  228 
Provision for impairment 10a(i) (15) (27) - - 

 3,021  3,714 -  228 
Other receivables -  1,533 - - 
Receivable - Sale of South Australia Property 2(c) -  4,200 -  4,200 
Amounts receivable from:
— wholly-owned subsidiaries    - -  7,550 - 
Total current trade and other receivables  3,021  9,447  7,550  4,428 

NON-CURRENT

Trade receivables  377  528 - - 
Amounts receivable from:
— wholly-owned entities - -  18,662  24,885 
Total non-current trade and other receivables  377  528  18,662  24,885 
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(a)  Provision For Impairment of Receivables 

 Current trade and term receivables are non-interest bearing loans and generally on 30 day terms.  Non-current trade and term receivables are assessed for 
recoverability based on the underlying terms of the contract.  A provision for impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence that an individual 
trade or term receivable is impaired.  These amounts have been included in the other expenses item.

Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows:

Opening Balance Charge for the Year Amounts Written 
Off

Closing Balance

1 July 2007 30 June 2008
Consolidated Group $000 $000 $000 $000

(i) Current trade receivables  204 (140) (37)  27 
 204 (140) (37)  27 

Parent Entity
(i) Current trade receivables - - - - 

- - - - 

Opening Balance Charge for the Year Amounts Written 
Off

Closing Balance

1 July 2008 30 June 2009
Consolidated Group $000 $000 $000 $000

(i) Current trade receivables  27 - (12)  15 
 27 - (12)  15 

Parent Entity
(i) Current trade receivables - - - - 

- - - - 

There are no balances within trade and other receivables that contain assets that are not impaired and are past due.  It is expected these balances will be 
received when due. Impaired assets are provided for in full.        
 

(b) Financial Assets classified as loans and receivables Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

Trade and other Receivables
— Total Current 29  3,021  9,447  7,550  4,428 
— Total Non-Current  377  528  18,662  24,885 
Financial Assets  3,398  9,975  26,212  29,313 

 

Note 11 Inventories Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

CURRENT
At cost
Finished goods  6,090  4,148 - - 

 6,090  4,148 - - 

Note 12  Other Financial Assets Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

- Shares in other related parties - at cost  6  6  1,891  1,891 
 6  6  1,891  1,891

Note 13  Controlled Entities

(a) Controlled Entities Consolidated
Country of Incorporation Percentage Owned (%)

2009 2008
Subsidiaries of Joyce Corporation Ltd:
Joyce Rural Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 
Bedding Investments Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 
Joyce Industries Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 
Marfoam Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 
Sierra Bedding Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 
Joyce Indpac Limited Australia  100  100 
Votraint No. 611 Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 
Joyce Asia Pty Ltd Singapore  100  100 
Bedshed Franchising Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 
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Note 14  Plant and Equipment Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment:
At cost  3,533  3,166  1,322  1,319 
Accumulated depreciation (1,388) (1,244) (806) (806)

 2,145  1,922  516  513 
Leasehold improvements
At cost  16  16 - - 
Accumulated amortisation (16) (12) - - 
Total Leasehold Improvements -  4 - - 

Leased plant and equipment  776  831 - - 
Capitalised leased assets (200) (52) - - 
Accumulated depreciation  576  779 - - 

Total plant and equipment  2,721  2,705  516  513 

(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts

 Movements in carrying amounts for each class of plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial year.

Leasehold 
Improvements  

$000

Plant and 
Equipment 

$000

Leased Plant and 
Equipment 

$000
Total 
$000

Consolidated Group
Balance at 1 July 2007  4  1,204  3  1,211 
Additions -  837  828  1,665 
Depreciation expense    - (119) (52) (171)
Balance at 30 June 2008  4  1,922  779  2,705 
Additions -  361  80  441 
Disposals - - - - 
Depreciation expense (4) (285) (136) (425)
Assets transferred from leased plant & equipment -  147 (147) - 
Balance at 30 June 2009 -  2,145  576  2,721 

Parent Entity:
Balance at 1 July 2007    -  517 -  517 
Additions -  1 -  1 
Depreciation expense - (5) - (5)
Balance at 30 June 2008 -  513 -  513 
Additions -  3 -  3 
Depreciation expense    - - - - 
Balance at 30 June 2009 -  516 -  516 

Note 15  Investment Property Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

$000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at beginning of year  20,800  22,660 -  1,840 
Sale of investment property - (1,840) - (1,840)
Transfer to non-current asset held for sale (7,550) - - - 
Fair value adjustments (2,820) (20) - - 
Balance at end of year  10,430  20,800 - - 

The fair value model is applied to all investment property. The investment property was valued by registered independent valuers as at 30 June 2009. Joyce 
Corporation Ltd leases its properties to Joyce Foam Pty Ltd (the Company which acquired the foam businesses in November 2005) at a rental less than the 
current market value. 
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Note 16  Intangible Assets Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

Goodwill
Cost  9,460  9,318 - - 
Additions  1,109  142 - - 
Accumulated impaired losses (344) (344) - - 
Net carrying value      10,225  9,116 - - 

Total intangibles  10,225  9,116 - - 

Consolidated Group
Goodwill  

$000
Goodwill  

$000
Year ended 30 June 2008
Balance at the beginning of year -  9,010 
Additions -  142 
Impairment losses - (36)
Closing value at 30 June 2008 -  9,116 

Year ended 30 June 2009
Balance at the beginning of year  9,116 - 
Additions  1,109 - 
Impairment losses - - 
Closing value at 30 June 2009  10,225 - 

Intangible assets as at 30 June 2009 reflects the value of the Bedshed activities, the Bedshed Joondalup company owned store which was purchased in May 2007 
and the Bedshed Claremont store that was purchased in October 2008 . An impairment test has been carried out assuming a 7.5% increase sales and an increase 
in operation expenses varying from 3% to 15% over a five year period based on the 2009 - 2010 operating budgets. The sales increase used has taken the retail 
sales trend applicable to the second half of the financial year and costs have been based on historical trends. Using a Discounted Cash Flow Rate of 9.3% over a 
five year period there is no impairment in the intangible asset. 

Impairment Disclosures

There has been no impairment of Goodwill for the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008:$36,000).

Note 17 Other Assets Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

CURRENT
Prepayments  1,218  178  76  72 

 1,218  178  76  72 

Note 18  Trade and Other Payables Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities
Trade payables  2,440  3,727  27  67 
Sundry payables and accrued expenses  690  692  115  131 
Amounts payable to:
— other related parties  1,729  3,309 - - 

 4,859  7,728  142  198 
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Note 19  Borrowings Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

CURRENT
Secured liabilities
Lease liability 23  116  137 - - 
Bank overdrafts 19a,c  4,462  4,820  4,462  4,820 

 4,578  4,957  4,462  4,820 
Total current borrowings      4,578  4,957  4,462  4,820 

NON-CURRENT
Secured liabilities
Lease liability 23  536  576 - - 
Bank loans 19a,c  7,939  7,938  7,939  7,938 

 8,475  8,514  7,939  7,938 
Total non-current borrowings  8,475  8,514  7,939  7,938 

Total borrowings     29  13,053  13,471  12,401  12,758 

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

(a)  Total current and non-current secured liabilities:
 Bank overdraft  4,462  4,820  4,462  4,820 
 Bank loan  7,939  7,938  7,939  7,938 

Lease liability  652  713 - - 
 13,053  13,471  12,401  12,758 

(b)   The carrying amounts of non-current assets
pledged as security are:    
Freehold land and buildings     17,980  20,800 - - 
Floating charge over assets, including plant & equipment  2,721  2,705  2,407  2,404 

 20,701  23,505  2,407  2,404 

(c) The available bank facility is $13,500,000. This facility was negotiated with St George in March 2008 and comprises a fixed commercial bill for $8,000,000 
for a five year term and an overdraft/guarantee facility of $5,500,000 which is renewable on an annual basis. The unused facility at 30 June 2009 is $53,000 
(2008: $742,000). There is first registered real property mortgage over the investment properties owned by the Group, together with a fixed and floating 
charge over the Group assets as security over the facility.

 The covenants with the bank includes an interest rate cover ratio of 2.00 times where the cover is earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation 
and abnormals divided by interest charged, gearing ratio to be a maximum of 0.80 times where gearing is Total Debt divided by Total Equity and dividend 
payments cannot be greater than 60% of net profit before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and abnormals.

 Lease liabilities are secured by the underlying leased assets.

 Financial assets that have been pledged as part of the total collateral for the benefit of the bank debt are as follows:-     
     

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables 9  3,519  4,687  4  106 
Total financial assets pledged    10  3,021  3,714 -  228 

 6,540  8,401  4  334 
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Note 20  Tax

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

CURRENT
Income tax payable  83 - - - 
TOTAL  83 - - - 

     

NON-CURRENT
Opening Balance 

Charged to 
Income

Charged Directly 
to Equity

Changes in  
Tax Rate

Exchange 
Differences Closing Balance

$ $ $ $ $ $
Consolidated Group
Deferred Tax Liability
Investment property  3,760 (291) (300) - -  3,169 
Balance as at 30 June 2008  3,760 (291) (300) - -  3,169 

Property, Plant and Equipment
- tax allowance -  35 - - -  35 
Investment property  3,169 (846) - - -  2,323 
Balance as at 30 June 2009  3,169 (811) - - -  2,358 

Deferred Tax Assets
Other  500 (238) - - -  262 
Balance as at 30 June 2008  500 (238) - - -  262 

Other  262 (12) - - -  250 
Balance as at 30 June 2009  262 (12) - - -  250 

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the benefits of which will only be realised if the conditions for deductibility set out in Note 1(b) occur:

- temporary differences $0 (2008: $88)

- tax losses: operating losses $0 (2008: $130)

- tax losses: capital losses $0 (2008: $0)          
 

Opening Balance 
Charged to 

Income
Charged Directly 

to Equity
Changes in Tax 

Rate
Exchange 

Differences Closing Balance
$ $ $ $ $ $

Parent Entity
Deferred Tax Liability
Investment property  362 (362) - - - - 
Balance as at 30 June 2008  362 (362) - - - - 

Investment property - - - - - - 
Balance as at 30 June 2009 - - - - - - 

Deferred Tax Assets
Other  75 (75) - - - - 
Balance as at 30 June 2008  75 (75) - - - - 

Other - - - - - - 
Balance as at 30 June 2009 - - - - - - 

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the benefits of which will only be realised if the conditions for deductibility set out in Note 1(b) occur:

- temporary differences $42 (2008: $34)          
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Note 21  Provisions Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

CURRENT $000 $000 $000 $000
South Australia Rental Shortfall

Opening balance at 1 July  238 -  238 - 
Additional provisions  49  238  49  238 
Amounts used - - - - 
Unused amounts reversed - - - - 
Increase in the discounted amount arising because of time  
and the effect of any change in the discount rate

- - - - 

Balance at 30 June 2008  287  238  287  238 

NON-CURRENT
Environmental Testing

Opening balance at 1 July  92  282  92  282 
Additional provisions - - - - 
Amounts used (19) (20) (19) (20)
Unused amounts reversed - (170) - (170)
Increase in the discounted amount arising because of time  
and the effect of any change in the discount rate

- - - - 

Balance at 30 June  73  92  73  92 

South Australia Rental Shortfall
Opening balance at 1 July  443 -  443 - 
Additional provisions -  443 -  443 
Amounts used (332) - (332) - 
Unused amounts reversed - - - - 
Increase in the discounted amount arising because of time  
and the effect of any change in the discount rate

- - - - 

Balance at 30 June  111  443  111  443 

Long-term Employee Benefits
Opening balance at 1 July  13 - - - 
Additional provisions  24  13  5 - 
Amounts used - - - - 
Unused amounts reversed - - - - 
Increase in the discounted amount arising because of time  
and the effect of any change in the discount rate 

- - - - 

Balance at 30 June  37  13  5 - 

Analysis of Total Provisions
Consolidated Group Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

Current  590  474  308  261 
Non-current  221  548  189  535 

 811  1,022  497  796 

Other (Environmental Contamination) 

As part of the ongoing testing of Joyce Corporation owned sites it was found that traces of a chemical used by Joyce Foam Products was detected in the groundwater 
at the South Australian and New South Wales  properties. The levels found were not high and to be prudent the Department of Environment and Conservation were 
notified. Confirmation has been received from the Department of Environment and Protection that no remediation work is required due to the low risk of harm to the 
environment, however an ongoing monitoring program has been established to monitor the nature, extent and movement of the chemical found. 

Provision for Rental Shortfall

A provision has been recognised for the payment of rental shortfall following the sale of the South Australian investment property. Under the lease arrangement 
rent was charged at lower than market value until November 2010. The rent shortfall will be paid in monthly installments till November 2010.

Provision for Long-term Employee Benefits

A provision has been recognised for employee entitlements relating to long service leave. In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long 
service leave, the probability of long service leave being taken is based on historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits 
has been included in Note 1 to this report.           
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Note 22  Issued Capital Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

20,321,623 (2008:20,321,623) fully paid ordinary shares  15,167  15,167  15,167  15,167 
380,000 (2008: 380,000) Partly paid ordinary shares issued at $1.955,  
paid to $1.215 (2008: $1.185)

 467  450  467  450 

 15,634  15,617  15,634  15,617 

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
(a)  Ordinary Shares 2009 2008 2009 2008

No. No. No. No.
At the beginning of reporting period  20,321,623  20,321,623  20,321,623  20,321,623 
Shares issued during year - - - - 
At reporting date  20,321,623  20,321,623  20,321,623  20,321,623 

(b) Partly Paid Shares (Issued at $1.955)

At the beginning of reporting period  380,000  380,000  380,000  380,000 
Shares issued during year - - - - 
At reporting date  380,000  380,000  380,000  380,000 

 

(c) Capital Management

Management control the capital of the group in order to maintain a good debt to equity ratio, provide the shareholders with adequate returns and ensure that 
the group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern.

The group’s debt and capital includes ordinary share capital and financial liabilities, supported by financial assets.

Other than those discussed at Note 19(c) there are no externally imposed capital requirements.

Management effectively manage the group’s capital by assessing the groups financial risks and adjusting its capital structure in response to changes in these 
risks and in the market.  These responses include the management of debt levels, distributions to shareholders and share issues. 

There have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to control the capital of the group since the prior year. This strategy is to ensure that the 
group’s gearing ratio remains between 30% and 50%. The gearing ratio for the year ended 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2008 is as follows:   
        

Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $
Total borrowings 18, 19  17,912  21,199  12,543  12,956 
Less cash and cash equivalents 9 (3,519) (4,687) (4) (106)
Net debt  14,393  16,512  12,539  12,850 
Total equity  24,243  26,487  15,659  18,143 
Total capital  38,636  42,999  28,198  30,993 

Gearing ratio 37% 38% 44% 41%

Note 23  Capital and Leasing Commitments 

Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

(a) Finance Lease Commitments $ $ $ $
Payable — minimum lease payments 
— not later than 12 months  224  205 - - 
— between 12 months and 5 years  560  691 - - 
— greater than 5 years - - - - 
Minimum lease payments  784  896 - - 
Less future finance charges (132) (183) - - 
Present value of minimum lease payments 19  652  713 - - 

Finance lease agreements have been entered into for vehicles and equipment at company owned stores and the finance arrangement is generally for a five year period.

(b)  Property Lease Receivable - Group as Lessor
The group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment 
property portfolio.
Receivable — minimum lease receivable
— not later than 12 months  506  887 - - 
— between 12 months and 5 years  2,712  3,155 - - 
— greater than 5 years  926  2,336 - - 

 4,144  6,378 - - 

The property leases are non-cancellable lease expiring in 2010 for the Queensland property and 2015 for the New South Wales property, with rent payable monthly 
in advance. Contingent rental provisions within the lease agreement require the minimum lease payments shall be increased by  CPI  per annum. An option exists 
to renew the lease at the end of the lease term for an additional term of five years. If the lease is renewed the rental rate is adjusted to current market value. 
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Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $
(c) Property Lease Rental Payable - Group as Lessee

Payable — minimum lease payments
Payable:
— not later than 12 months  4,228  2,657 - - 
— between 12 months and 5 years  15,301  9,141 - - 
— greater than 5 years  3,008  2,446 - - 

 22,537  14,244 - - 

The property leases are non-cancellable lease and have remaining terms one and seven years, with rent payable monthly in advance. Provisions within the lease 
agreements require that the minimum lease payments shall be increased by  the CPI  per annum. An option exists for most of the leases to renew the lease at the 
end of the lease term for an additional term equal to the period of the original leasee. If the lease is renewed the rental rate is adjusted to market value.  
        

(d) Capital Expenditure Committments
Capital expenditure committment for store development
—  plant and equipment

Payable:
—  not later than 12 months  238  2,200 - - 
  238  2,200 - - 

Note 24 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent Liabilities 

Bedshed Main Action

A group of franchisees within the Bedshed retail bedding group has issued a writ in the WA Supreme Court in relation to the operation of Bedshed’s Marketing 
Fund, rebates from suppliers and the operation of the import program. Bedshed intends to vigorously defend this action.   

At this stage, the Directors are unable to assess with any certainty the extent (if any) of the impact that of this matter could have on the Group’s financial 
performance.    

Bedshed Mile End

The franchisee of the Bedshed Mile End store has issued a writ in the WA Supreme Court in relation to the franchisor’s right to open Company owned and operated 
stores in South Australia. Bedshed intends to vigorously defend this action. 

Given Bedshed’s plans with regard to expansion of the group in Victoria, Queensland and New South Wales (more so than in South Australia), the Directors do not 
believe  the impact that this matter will have any significant impact on the group’s financial performance (if any) will be significant.

Bedshed Queensland

The franchisees in Queensland have issued a Notice of Dispute regarding the margin that the Franchisor has charged franchisees in relation to its central 
warehouse in Queensland. The issue will go to mediation in October.  The Directors do not believe that this matter will have any significant impact on the Group’s 
financial performance.

Rental Guarantees

Joyce Corporation Ltd has provided guarantees to third parties in relation to property leases for Bedshed Company owned stores.  These guarantees will be 
required while the stores remain company operated and currently total $1,046,177 (2008: 960,000).
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Note 25  Segment Reporting
Bedshed Franchising Bedshed Stores Investment Properties/

Joyce
Consolidated Group 

 (Continuing Operations)
2009 
$000

2008 
$000

2009 
$000

2008 
$000

2009 
$000

2008 
$000

2009 
$000

2008 
$000

Primary Reporting — Business Segments
REVENUE
External Sales  6,801  5,788  20,209  9,584  878  1,629  27,888  17,001 
Other segments - - - -  1,091 -  1,091 
Total sales revenue  6,801  5,788  20,209  9,584  878  2,720  27,888  18,092 
Unallocated revenue  21 - 
Total revenue  27,909  18,092 

RESULT
Segment result  2,240  1,373  238 (156) (3,372)  1,718 (894)  2,935 
Unallocated expenses net of unallocated revenue  21 - 
Finance Costs (1,172) (869)
Share of net profits of associates and joint venture entities - - 
Profit before income tax (2,045)  2,066 
Income tax expense  716 - 
Profit after income tax (1,329)  2,066 

ASSETS
Segment assets  12,429  15,381  13,762  9,755  18,966  26,458  45,157  51,594 
Unallocated assets  250  262 
Discontinued operations assets - - 
Total assets  45,407  51,856 

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities  3,592  6,572  2,036  1,806  695  1,084  6,323  9,462 
Unallocated liabilities  14,841  15,928 
Discontinued operations liabilities - - 
Total liabilities  21,164  25,390 

OTHER
Acquisitions of non-current segment assets  29  62  1,597  1,603 -  1  1,626  1,666 
Depreciation and amortisation of segment assets  81  94  344  110 -  5  425  209 
Other non-cash segment expenses - - - -  2,820 -  2,820 - 

Secondary Reporting — Geographical Segments

The operations of the Group are based in Australia.

Accounting Policies

Segment revenues and expenses are those directly attributable to the segments and include any joint revenue and expenses where a reasonable basis of 
allocation exists. Segment assets include all assets used by a segment and consist principally of cash, receivables, inventories, intangibles and property, plant 
and equipment, net of allowances and accumulated depreciation and amortisation. While most such assets can be directly attributed to individual segments, the 
carrying amount of certain assets used jointly by two or more segments is allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis. Segment liabilities consist principally of 
payables, employee benefits, accrued expenses, provisions and borrowings. Segment assets and liabilities do not include deferred income taxes.

Business and Geographical Segments
Business segments     

The consolidated group has the following three business segments:

— The Bedshed retail bedding franchise operation

— The operation of company owned Bedshed stores in WA, SA, VIC, NSW and QLD 

— The property in New South Wales and Queensland which are leased under the sale agreement of the Foam Business

Geographical segments     

The economic entity’s business segments are located in Australia
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Note 26  Cash Flow Information Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

(a) Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Profit after Income Tax
Profit/(Loss) after income tax (1,329)  2,066 (1,569)  534 
Cash flows excluded from profit/(loss) attributable to operating activities
Non-cash flows in profit/(loss)
 Depreciation/Amortisation  425  214 -  5 
 Provision for doubtful debts - (115) - - 
 Revaluations of properties  2,820  14 - - 
 Write-off of obsolete stock -  71 - - 
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (4) (1,629) - (1,629)
 (Increase)/decrease in trade and term receivables  1,186 (377)  218  202 
 (Increase)/decrease in prepayments  151 (128)  3  46 
 (Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,942) (2,860) - - 
 (Increase)/decrease in deferred tax assets  175 - - - 
 Increase/(decrease) in trade payables and accruals (2,721)  665 (55)  20 
 Increase/(decrease) in income taxes payable  83 - - - 
 Increase/(decrease) in deferred taxes payable (974) (150) - (150)

Increase/(decrease) in provisions    (359)  190 (300) - 
 Cash flow from operations (2,489) (2,039) (1,703) (972)

 

(b) Non-cash Financing and Investing Activities

(i) Plant & Equipment         

During the year the consolidated group acquired plant and equipment with an aggregate value of $80,000 (2008: $896,000) by means of finance leases. 
These acquisitions are not reflected in the cash flow statement.

(c) Credit Standby Arrangements with Banks

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

Credit facility  13,500  13,500  13,500  13,500 
Amount utilised (13,447) (12,758) (13,447) (12,758)

 53  742  53  742 
The major facilities are summarised as follows:
Bank overdrafts  4,451  5,500  4,451  5,500 

 

 Bank overdraft facilities are arranged with St George with the general terms  
 and conditions being set and agreed to annually 

 Interest rates are variable and subject to adjustment

Commercial Bill facility fixed for five years  8,000  8,000  8,000  8,000 
Bank Guarantee Line     1,049 -  1,049 - 

 13,500  13,500  13,500  13,500 

Finance will be provided under all facilities provided the Company and the consolidated Group have not breached any borrowing requirements and the 
required financial ratios are met. During the year a technical breach of covenant occurred, this was remedied by the financier removing the covenant 
from the facility agreement.

(d) Business Acquisition

In October 2008 the Group acquired the business and assets of a Bedshed store from a franchisee.  The store’s principal activities include the retailing of 
Bedshed products and other franchisor programs.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities at acquisition date:

Pre-acquisition 
Amounts

Recognised Values 
On Acquisition

$000 $000

Plant & Equipment  95  95 
Inventory  400  400 
Net Identifiable Assets  495  495 
Intangible Assets Acquired on Acquisition – Goodwill  1,109 
Consideration paid in cash  1,604 
          

Note 27 Events After the Balance Sheet Date
On 6 August 2009, the Company announced that a conditional offer had been accepted on the Brendale property in Queensland for $7.75m. The agreement is 
subject to the purchaser undertaking due diligence on the property. This due diligence is to be completed by 30 September 2009.  Settlement has been negotiated 
to occur no later than 30 June 2010.
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Note 28  Related Party Transactions
Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise 
stated.

Transactions with related parties:

(a) Key Management Personnel          

(i) Disclosures relating to directors:-          

 Those Directors or their Director-related entities received dividend payments, which were made on the same basis as those made to other shareholders, 
during the year ended 30 June 2009.

(ii) Transactions entered into during the year between the Company and its controlled entities and Directors of the Company and their Director-related 
entities were within normal customer or employee relationships on terms and conditions no more favourable than those available to other customers or 
employees.

(iii) Consulting fees paid to Anatems Pty Ltd ATF The Forrest Trust in which Mr D Smetana has a beneficial interest $188,024 (2008 - $196,675). As at year 
end there was no amount owing to this related party (2008: Nil).

(iv) Consulting fees paid to Franchising Solutions Pty Ltd for MR T Hantke - nil (2008 - $8,250). As at year end there was no amount owing to this related 
party (2008: Nil).

(v) The Non-Executive directors fees for Mr A Mankarios are paid to Starball Pty Ltd, a company in which Mr Mankarios has a significant influence - 
$55,000 (2008 - $18,000). As at year end there was no amount owing to this related party (2008: Nil).

 The wholly owned group consists of Joyce Corporation Ltd and its wholly owned controlled entities as set out in Note 13. Joyce Corporation Ltd is the 
ultimate controlling entity.  

         

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000

Consulting fees paid to Anatems Pty Ltd ATF The Forrest Trust for Mr D Smetana  188  197  188  197 
Consulting fees paid to Franchising Solutions Pty Ltd for Mr T Hantke -  8 - - 
Non-Executive directors fees paid to Starball Pty Ltd fo Mr A Mankarios  55  18  55  18 

Note 29  Financial Risk Management 
(a)  Financial Risk Management Policies

The group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, short-term investments, accounts receivable and payable, loans to and from 
subsidiaries, bills and leases.

(i) Financial Risk Exposures and Management

 The main risks the group is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk, credit risk.

 Interest rate risk

 The economic entity’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
interest rates and the effective weighted average interest rates on classes of financial assets and financial liabilities and financial liabilities.

 The Group manages its finance costs by using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt.  The Group’s current policy is to maintain between 60% and 70% of 
its borrowings at fixed rates.  At 30 June 2009 approximately 66% of the group debt is at a fixed rate.    

 Liquidity risk 

 The group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate unutilised borrowing facilities are maintained. The group 
negotiated new credit facilities with St George in March 2008 with a fixed commercial bill maturing in five years. 

 The Groups objective is to maintain a balance between through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and finance leases.   

 Credit risk

 The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recognised financial assets, is the carrying 
amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements.

 Credit risk is managed on a Group basis and reviewed  monthly through debtor meetings attended by senior management and support staff responsible 
for the day to day collection of debts.

 The credit risk for counter parties included in trade and other receivables at 30 June 2009 is detailed below:     
    

Economic Entity Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

Trade and other receivables $000 $000 $000 $000
Franchising Activities  3,398  5,547 - - 
Other -  4,428 -  4,428 
Total  3,398  9,975 -  4,428 
 

The consolidated Group does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable or Group of receivables under financial instruments 
entered into by the Consolidated Group. 
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(ii) Financial Instrument Composition and Maturity Analysis 

The tables below reflect the undiscounted contractual settlement terms for financial instruments of a fixed period of maturity, as well as management’s 
expectations of the settlement period for all other financial instruments. As such the amounts may not reconcile to the balance sheet.

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing
Weighted Average Effective 

Interest Rate %
Floating Interest Rate 

$000
Within 1 Year 

$000
1 to 5 years 

$000
Economic Group 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2.9% 4.5%  3,519  4,687 - - - - 
Receivables - - - - - - 
Total Financial Assets  3,519  4,687 - - - - 

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing  
Over 5 Years 

$000

Non-interest Bearing 
 

$000

Total 
 

$000
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - - -  3,519  4,687 
Receivables - -  3,398  9,975  3,398  9,975 
Total Financial Assets - -  3,398  9,975  6,917  14,662 

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing
Weighted Average Effective 

Interest Rate %
Floating Interest Rate 

$000
Within 1 Year 

$000
1 to 5 years 

$000
Economic Group 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Financial Liabilities:
Bank loans and overdrafts 7.8% 8.0%  4,462  4,820 - -  7,939  7,938 
Trade and sundry payables - - - - - - 
Lease liabilities - -  116  137  536  576 
Total Financial Liabilities  4,462  4,820  116  137  8,475  8,514 

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing  
Over 5 Years 

$000

Non-interest Bearing 
 

$000

Total 
 

$000
Financial Liabilities: 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Bank loans and overdrafts - - - -  12,401  12,758 
Trade and sundry payables - -  4,859  7,728  4,859  7,728 
Lease liabilities - - - -  652  713 
Total Financial Liabilities - -  4,859  7,728  17,912  21,199 

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing
Weighted Average Effective 

Interest Rate %
Floating Interest Rate 

$000
Within 1 Year 

$000
1 to 5 years 

$000
Parent Entity 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 0.25% 4.5%  4  106 - - - - 
Receivables - - - - - - 
Total Financial Assets  4  106 - - - - 

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing  
Over 5 Years 

$000

Non-interest Bearing 
 

$000

Total 
 

$000
Financial Assets: 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Cash and cash equivalents - - - -  4  106 
Receivables - -  26,212  4,428  26,212  4,428 
Total Financial Assets - -  26,212  4,428  26,216  4,534 

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing
Weighted Average Effective 

Interest Rate %
Floating Interest Rate 

$000
Within 1 Year 

$000
1 to 5 years 

$000
Parent Entity 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Financial Liabilities:
Bank loans and overdrafts 7.8% 8.0%  4,462  4,820 - -  7,939  7,938 
Trade and sundry payables - - - - - - 
Total Financial Liabilities  4,462  4,820 - -  7,939  7,938 

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing  
Over 5 Years 

$000

Non-interest Bearing 
 

$000

Total 
 

$000
Financial Liabilities: 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Bank loans and overdrafts - - - -  12,401  12,758 
Trade and sundry payables - -  142  198  142  198 
Total Financial Liabilities - -  142  198  12,543  12,956 
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Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on managements expectations

Year ended 30 June 2009

< 6 months 6-12 months 1-5 years >5 years Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Consolidated Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  3,519 - - -  3,519 
Trade & other receivables  3,398 - - -  3,398 

 6,917 - - -  6,917 

Consolidated Financial liabilities
Trade & other payables  4,859 - - -  4,859 
Interest bearing loans & borrowings  58  4,520  8,475 -  13,053 

 4,917  4,520  8,475 -  17,912 
Net maturity  2,000 (4,520) (8,475) - (10,995)

Year ended 30 June 2009
< 6 months 6-12 months 1-5 years >5 years Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Parent Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  4 - - -  4 
Trade & other receivables -  7,550 -  18,662  26,212 

 4  7,550 -  18,662  26,216 

Parent Financial liabilities
Trade & other payables  142 - - -  142 
Interest bearing loans & borrowings -  4,462  7,939 -  12,401 

 142  4,462  7,939 -  12,543 
Net maturity (138)  3,088 (7,939)  18,662  13,673 

 

(iii) Net Fair Values

Aggregate net fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at balance date 

2009 2008
Carrying Amount 

$000
Net Fair Value 

$000
Carrying Amount 

$000
Net Fair Value 

$000
Financial Assets
Term Debtors  3,398  3,398  9,975  9,975 
Cash and cash equivalents  3,519  3,519  4,687  4,687 
Loans and receivables - - - - 

 6,917  6,917  14,662  14,662 

2009 2008
Carrying Amount 

$000
Net Fair Value 

$000
Carrying Amount 

$000
Net Fair Value 

$000
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables  4,859  4,859  7,728  7,728 
Bank Borrowings  12,401  12,401  12,758  12,758 
Lease Liability  652  652  713  713 

 17,912  17,912  21,199  21,199 

(iv) Sensitivity analysis

Interest Rate Risk

The group has performed sensitivity analysis relating to its exposure to interest rate risk at balance date.  This sensitivity analysis demonstrates the effect on 
the current year results and equity which could result from a change in these risks.

The interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis has been based on the cash borrowings as shown in the Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2009.

As at 30 June 2009, the effect on profit and equity as a result of changes in the interest rate, with all other variables remaining constant would be as follows:

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

Change in profit/(loss) $000 $000 $000 $000
– Increase in interest rate by 0.5% (20) (17) (20) (17)
– Decrease in interest rate by 0.5%  20  17  20  17 
Change in equity
– Increase in interest rate by 0.5% (20) (17) (20) (17)
– Decrease in interest rate by 0.5%  20  17  20  17 

The above interest rate sensitivity analysis has been performed on the assumption that all other variables remain unchanged. The sensitivity analysis takes into 
account deferred tax.The sensitivity assumptions have been based on possible movements in interest rates based on the Group’s current debt and the level of 
debt that is expected to be renewed as well as economic forecaster’s expectations.
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Note 30  Reserves

(a) Asset Revaluation Reserve          

The asset revaluation reserve records revaluations of non-current assets. Under certain circumstances dividends can be declared from this reserve.  
        

(b) Financial Assets Reserve          

The financial assets reserve records revaluation of financial assets.         
 

Note 31  Company Details

The registered office of the company is:

Joyce Corporation Ltd

14 Collingwood Street

Osborne Park WA 6017 

The principal places of business are:

Joyce Corporation Ltd

14 Collingwood Street

Osborne Park WA 6017 
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The Directors of the Company declare that:       

1. the financial statements, notes, as set out on pages 33 to 63, and the additional disclosures included in 

the Directors’ Report designated as audited are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:

(a) comply with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2009 and of the performance for 

the year ended on that date of the Company and Consolidated Group;

2. This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in 

accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009.

3. in the Directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay 

its debts as and when they become due and payable. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

       

Director       

Mr R Mahoney    

Dated this 30th day of September 2009
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Additional Information

Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Ltd and not shown elswhere in this 

report is as follows. The information is current as at 30 September 2009.

1. Shareholdings

a.  Distribution of Shareholders Ordinary Shares
 Category (size of holding) No. of Holders No. Of Shares
 1 – 1,000  231  77,777 
 1,001 – 5,000  199  505,968 
 5,001 – 10,000  72  522,241 
 10,001 – 100,000  114  3,277,588 
 100,001 – and over  27  15,938,049 

 643  20,321,623 

 b. Number of holders with less than marketable parcel of ordinary shares is 255.

c. The names of the substantial shareholders listed in the holding company’s register as at  
30 June 2009 are:      

Ordinary Shares
Shareholder Number Percentage
Smetana Family Holding  7,079,932  34.84 
John Roy Westwood  2,050,338  10.09 

d. Voting Rights

 The voting rights attached to each class of equity security are as follows:

 Ordinary shares

 – Each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each member   

present at a meeting or by proxy has one vote on a show of hands.    
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 e.  20 Largest Shareholders — Ordinary Shares

Name

Number of Ordinary 
Fully Paid Shares 

Held

% Held of Issued 
Ordinary Capital

1 Adamic Pty Ltd - Adamic Super Fund  3,695,503  18.19 
2 Peduncle Pty Ltd  2,967,728  14.60 
3 Ufba Pty Ltd  1,337,500  6.58 
4 Wallbay Pty Ltd - Abell Unit Account  996,086  4.90 
5 Mr Donald Teo  990,000  4.87 
6 Trafalgar Place Nominees Pty Ltd  723,567  3.56 
7 Parks Australia Pty Ltd  423,239  2.08 
8 Divpass Pty Ltd  403,500  1.99 
9 Mr D A Smetana & Mrs J G Smetana  

- Smetana Family Trust

 390,167  1.92 

10 Mr Richard Hamilton Bartlett  373,800  1.84 
11 Mr Anthony Mankarios & Mrs Chiara Mankarios  360,289  1.77 
12 Divpass Pty Limited  338,000  1.66 
13 Pynland Pty Limited  314,886  1.55 
14 Mr Daniel Alexander Smetana  280,000  1.38 
15 Mr Keith Knowles  269,380  1.33 
16 ASB Nominees Limited  231,411  1.14 
17 Brazil Farming Pty Ltd  230,000  1.13 
18 Mr John Martin Wright  229,463  1.13 
19 Conard Holdings Pty Ltd  221,540  1.09 
20 P B L Investments Pty Ltd  210,440  1.04 

 14,986,499  73.75 

 

 f.  Unquoted Partly Paid Ordinary Shares holdings greater than 20%

Partly Paid Ordinary Shares
       Name Number Percentage
           Mr Daniel Alexander Smetana  380,000  100.00 
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